
+K 

 

 
 

                        MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

 
DATE & TIME:  April 23, 2021 • 8:00 AM – 10:00 AM  
 
REMOTE ACCESS:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09 

 

MEETING ID#: 732 105 8840  PASSWORD (if requested): WCCTAC2020  
 
Shelter-In-Place Order and Teleconference 
The Contra Costa County Health Officer issued an order directing residents to shelter in 
place, due to COVID-19.  The order limits activity, travel, and business functions to only 
those that are essential. 
 
Remote Participation Only 
As a result of the COVID-19 public health emergency, including the County Health 
Officer and Governor’s directives for everyone to shelter in place, there will be no 
physical location for the Board Meeting.  Board members will attend via teleconference 
and members of the public are invited to attend the meeting and participate remotely.  
 
Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20, Board members: Chris Kelley, 
Vincent Salimi, Rita Xavier, Tom Butt, Demnlus Johnson, Eduardo Martinez, Paul Fadelli, 
John Gioia, Jovanka Beckles, Lateefah Simon, and Maureen Powers may be attending 
this meeting via teleconference, as may WCCTAC Alternate Board Members. Any votes 
conducted during the teleconferencing session will be conducted by roll call. 
 
The public may observe and address the WCCTAC Board in the following ways: 
 
Remote Viewing/Listening 
Webinar:  
To observe the meeting by video conference, utilizing the Zoom platform, please click 
on this link (same link as shown above) to join the webinar at the noticed meeting time: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09 

 
Phone:  
Dial the following number, enter the participant PIN followed by # to confirm: 
+1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 732 105 8840 
Password: 066620 
 

 

 
El Cerrito 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

A-1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09


Public Comment via Teleconference 
Members of the public may address the Board during the initial public comment portion 
of the meeting or during the comment period for agenda items. 
 
Participants may use the chat function on Zoom or physically raise their hands to 
indicate if they wish to speak on a particular item.  
 
Written Comment (accepted until the start of the meeting, unless otherwise noted on 
the meeting agenda). Public comments received by 5:00 p.m. on the evening before the 
Board meeting date will be provided to the WCCTAC Board and heard before Board 
action.  Comments may be submitted by email to vjenkins@wcctac.org.  
 
Comments may also be submitted via e-mail to vjenkins@wcctac.org at any time prior 
to closure of the public comment portion of the item(s) under consideration. All written 
comments will be included in the record. 
 
Reading of Public Comments: WCCTAC staff will read aloud email comments received 
during the meeting that include the subject line “FOR THE RECORD” as well as the item 
number for comment, provided that the reading shall not exceed three (3) minutes, or 
such other time as the Board may provide.  

 

 
1. Call to Order and Board Member Roll Call. (Chris Kelley – Chair) 

 
2. Public Comment. The public is welcome to address the Board on any item that is 

not listed on the agenda.   
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
3. Minutes of March 26, 2021 Board Meeting. (Attachment; Recommended Action: 

Approve).  
 

4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities. (Attachment; Information only). 
 

5. Financial Reports. The reports show the Agency’s revenues and expenses for 
March 2021. (Attachment; Information only). 
 

6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000. None (No attachment; Information only). 
 

7. FY 21-22 Annual STMP Fee Adjustment.  The STMP Master Cooperative 
Agreement specifies an automatic annual fee adjustment so that the fees keep up 
with construction related inflation. The agreement specifies that the fee adjustment 
is based on the Engineering News Record’s February San Francisco Bay Area 
Construction Cost Index that covers the prior twelve months. This year that rate was 

2.4%. (Attachment; Recommended Action: Information Only).   

A-2



REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

8. Developer Request to Appeal STMP Fees for Mayfair Project at 11600 San 
Pablo Ave., El Cerrito.  The Master Cooperative Agreement for the 2019 STMP 
designates the WCCTAC Board as the body to consider fee appeals.  The Board is 
being asked at its April meeting to consider an appeal by Holliday Development 
LLC.  (Leah Greenblat - WCCTAC Staff; Attachments; Recommended Action: 1.) 
Deny the developer’s appeal on the grounds that the 2019 STMP, and not the 
2006 STMP, is applicable. 2.) Request that the City of El Cerrito not issue an 
occupancy permit until the remaining STMP fees on residential development are 
paid. 3.) Waive fees on the retail portion of the project which was mistakenly not 
assessed by the City). 

 
9. West County Travel Training Program in FY22.  In the Spring of 2019, WCCTAC 

launched program to train senior and less abled residents on how to use various 
modes of travel including transit, Uber/Lyft, and paratransit services.  This 
program was officially put on hold in the Spring of 2020 with the onset of the 
pandemic. Staff is recommended that the program be re-activated for the 
duration of Fiscal Year 2022, starting on July 1.  To ensure sufficient funding, staff 
is recommending an allocation of $48,000 in Measure J 28b funds for the effort.   
(Joanna Pallock - WCCTAC Staff; Attachments; Recommended Action: Allocate 
$48,000 in Measure J 28b funds to continue the West County Travel Training 
Program in FY22). 
 

10. Link21. Staff from HNTB and Capitol Corridor will provide an overview on Link21, 
a megaregional effort being led by BART and the Capitol Corridor with the 
support of HNTB.  The goal is to improve the BART and Regional Rail network 
(including commuter, intercity, and high-speed rail) network to create a faster, 
more integrated system that provides a safe, efficient, equitable and affordable 
means of travel for all types of trips.  It includes the examination of a potential 
second BART/rail crossing.  The effort will begin with a round of public outreach, 
including a proposed Richmond-focused meeting in June.  (Deidre Heitman, Alex 
Evans - HNTB, Camille Tsao – Capitol Corridor; No Attachment; Recommended 
Action: Information only).  
 

11. TDM Program Update.  Staff will provide an update on the 511 Contra Costa 
TDM program, including current program activities this year and a look ahead to 
Fiscal Year 2022.  After an unusual and challenging year, 511 Contra Costa, like 
many programs aimed at commuters, is adapting to a post-COVID-19 
environment. (Coire Reilly, WCCTAC Staff; No Attachments; Recommended 
Action: Information only). 

 
 
 
 

A-3



STANDING ITEMS 
 

12. Board and Staff Comments. 
a. Board Member Comments, Conference/Meeting Reports (AB 1234 

Requirement), and Announcements 
b. Report from CCTA Representatives (Directors Kelley & Butt) 
c. Executive Director’s Report 

 
13. General Information Items. 

a. Letter to CCTA Executive Director with March 26, 2021 Summary of Board 
Actions 

b. Acronym List 
 

14.  Adjourn.  The next regular meeting is on May 28, 2021 @ 8:00 a.m.  
                     The meeting will be held remotely (see next agenda for details)  

 
 

• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special 
assistance to participate in the WCCTAC Board meeting, or if you need a copy of the 
agenda and/or agenda packet materials in an alternative format, please contact 
Valerie Jenkins at 510.210.5930 prior to the meeting. 

• If you have special transportation requirements and would like to attend the meeting, 
please call the phone number above at least 48 hours in advance to make 
arrangements. 

• Handouts provided at the meeting are available upon request and may also be viewed 
at WCCTAC’s offices. 

• Please refrain from wearing scented products to the meeting, as there may be 
attendees susceptible to environmental illnesses. Please also put cellular phones on 
silent mode during the meeting. 

• A meeting sign-in sheet will be circulated at the meeting.  Sign-in is optional. 

 

A-4



West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Minutes March 26, 2021 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Kelley, Chair (Hercules); Demnlus Johnson III, Vice-Chair 
(Richmond); Rita Xavier (San Pablo); Vincent Salimi (Pinole); Paul Fadelli (El Cerrito); Tom 
Butt (Richmond); Jovanka Beckles (AC Transit); Lateefa Simon (BART); John Gioia (Contra 
Costa County) 
 
STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Coire Reilly, Leah Greenblat, Kris Kokotaylo 
 
ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins 
 
Meeting Called to Order: 8:00am 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion by Director Beckles, seconded by Director Xavier; motion passed unanimously. 
Yes- C. Kelley, D. Johnson III, P. Fadelli, R. Xavier, J. Gioia, L. Simon, J. Beckles, V. Salimi, T. 
Butt 
No- none 
Abstention- none 
Motion passed unanimously 
 
Item #3. Approved: Minutes of February 26, 2021 Board Meeting.  
Item #4. Received: Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities. 
Item #5. Received: Financial Reports: February 2021.  
Item #6. Received: No Invoices over $10,000.  
Item #7. Approved: Circulation of the Lamorinda Action Plan Amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3-1



REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

Meeting Adjourned: 8:43am 

ITEM/DISCUSSION ACTION 
 

Item #8 
Proposed 2019 STMP Update Cycle 1 Call for 
Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leah Greenblat, WCCTAC Staff, proposed a Cycle 
1 call for projects for the 2019 STMP. She noted 
that the TAC supported a call for projects and 
also developed some criteria for developing a 
recommendation to the Board.  Staff proposed 
that WCCTAC make $3.75M available. The 20 
projects included in the 2019 STMP are all 
eligible for funding.   
 
Motion by Director Butt to release the 2019 
STMP Cycle 1 Call for Projects, seconded by Vice-
Chair Johnson III. 
Yes- C. Kelley, D. Johnson III, P. Fadelli, R. Xavier, 
J. Gioia, L. Simon, J. Beckles, V. Salimi, T. Butt 
No-None 
Abstention- None 
Motion passed unanimously  
 

Item #9 
Richmond Ferry Status Report and Service 
Recommendation 

Information Only 
Kevin Connolly, WETA staff, provided an update 
on the Richmond Ferry, including ridership 
trends.  He also explained that WETA’s Pandemic 
Recovery Program involved an expansion of 
service in July along with steep discounts in fares 
for FY22.  The Board expressed general support 
for these service plans but also asked WETA staff 
to closely monitor net operating costs which are 
funded by Measure J. The Board also asked 
WETA to return near the end of the year to 
provide another update.    
 

3-2



 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board DATE: April 23, 2021 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities  

 

Student Bus Pass Program (SBPP) for Spring 2021 and Summer 2021 
WCCTAC and West Contra Costa County Unified School District (WCCUSD) staff have been 
coordinating on the Student Buss Pass Program as area schools reopen with a hybrid schedule. 
This program, funded by Measure J, provides free monthly transit passes to students who qualify 
for free or reduced lunches.   

 
WCCUSD is preparing to resume issuing bus passes.  The process will involve principals at each 
school requesting passes from the WCCUSD administrative lead on an as-needed basis.  The 
availability of bus services, including special services aimed at students, varies by route.  AC 
Transit is planning to add more service as demand increases. WestCAT has less flexibility to add 
school-oriented service, but there are fewer students in its service area who participate in the 
Student Bus Pass Program.    
 
The WCCUSD expects to have 46 sites open for summer school.  Transit operators hope to have 
additional bus capacity in place, and WCCUSD is planning to issue free passes to qualified 

summer school students.  Staff will keep the Board updated on this program.   

4-1



 

511 Contra Costa Providing Free Trips on the Richmond-San Francisco Ferry 
The 511 Contra Costa TDM Program 
is partnering with the Water 
Emergency Transportation Authority 
(WETA) to offer six free trips (three 
round trips) on the Richmond-San 
Francisco ferry route to those who 
qualify!  Recipients will get their 
tickets from the San Francisco Water 
Emergency Transit Agency (WETA) 
through the HopThru app, which can 
be downloaded in the Apple iOS and 
Android stores. To qualify, 

participants must live or work in Contra Costa County, be over 18 years old, and otherwise drive 
alone to a work location. The program was launched on April 15.  More information and the 
application can be found here: 511cc.org/ferry  
 
 

Bike to Wherever Days 2021 
This year, the region will be following the same model as last year and rebranding Bike to Work 
Day as “Bike to Wherever Days”, featuring a month of bicycle promotion.  May 21, however, will 
be the focus of special celebrations.  

 
This year, the planning coalition decided to align the focal point day with the national day (which 
is on the third Friday of May) and will continue to align with the national day moving forward. In 
decades past, the Bay Area has always celebrated on the Thursday of the week prior, which 
would sometimes cause confusion. This change brings the Bay Area into alignment with other 
bicycle champions across the nation.  
 
May will include a promotion of the bicycle and pedestrian path on the Richmond-San Rafael 
Bridge, where residents can scan QR codes at either side of the bridge for incentives and raffle 
prizes.  Commuters who cross the bridge on their bicycle during commute hours will be eligible 
for even bigger prizes.  
 
 

4-2

https://apps.apple.com/us/app/hopthru/id1129525054
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.hopthruinc.hopthru&hl=en_US&gl=US
We're%20offering%206%20trips%20(3%20round%20trips)%20free%20to%20those%20who%20qualify!%20Recipients%20will%20receive%20the%20tickets%20from%20the%20San%20Francisco%20Water%20Emergency%20Transit%20Agency%20(WETA)%20through%20the%20HopThru%20app,%20which%20can%20be%20downloaded%20in%20the%20iOS%20and%20Android%20stores


 

Link21 Vision for the Future of Rail 
 
Link21 is a megaregional 
effort being led by BART 
and the Capitol Corridor, 
with the consultant 
support of HNTB, to 
improve the BART and the 
regional rail network. 
Launched in 2019, it is now 
moving into “Phase 1” or 
the Program Identification 
phase. This will include 
public input and outreach, 
including a virtual meeting 
that’s planned to focus on 
Richmond.  The WCCTAC 
Board will receive an 
overview on Link21 at is 
April 2021 Board meeting.  
 

 

FY 21-22 STMP Fee Adjustment 
WCCTAC staff is working with its STMP participating jurisdictions to get ready for the upcoming 
fiscal year.  The STMP Master Cooperative Agreement allows for the program’s fees to be 
adjusted each year on July 1 to account for inflation.  WCCTAC notifies jurisdictions in the spring 
so the adjusted rates can be incorporated into local fee schedules.  For FY 21-22, the STMP fees 
will increase by 2.4%, based on a construction cost index for the San Francisco Bay Area, which 
interestingly, is about half of the amount of last year’s increase of 5.6%.   
 

4-3





G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 4

/8
/2

02
1 

4:
05

:2
7 

PM
Pe

ri
od

 0
1 

- 
09

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
21

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
r

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

A
do

pt
ed

B
ud

ge
t

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

A
dj

us
te

d
Y

T
D

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
E

nc
um

be
re

d
A

va
ila

bl
e

%
 A

va
il

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
10

C
C

 C
ou

nt
y 

ST
M

P 
Fe

es
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-2

9,
30

5.
89

29
,3

05
.8

9
0.

00
29

,3
05

.8
9

0.
00

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

15
E

l C
er

ri
to

 S
T

M
P 

Fe
es

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-2
62

,5
27

.0
0

26
2,

52
7.

00
0.

00
26

2,
52

7.
00

0.
00

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

25
Pi

no
le

 S
T

M
P 

Fe
es

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
9,

95
0.

10
19

,9
50

.1
0

0.
00

19
,9

50
.1

0
0.

00
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
30

R
ic

hm
on

d 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-7
9,

26
5.

00
79

,2
65

.0
0

0.
00

79
,2

65
.0

0
0.

00
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
35

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-8
6,

41
2.

36
86

,4
12

.3
6

0.
00

86
,4

12
.3

6
0.

00
L

ic
en

se
s 

an
d 

P
er

m
its

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-4
77

,4
60

.3
5

47
7,

46
0.

35
0.

00
47

7,
46

0.
35

0.
00

77
0-

00
00

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-4

51
.1

3
45

1.
13

0.
00

45
1.

13
0.

00
77

2-
00

00
-3

61
02

In
te

re
st

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

77
3-

00
00

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-7

,8
67

.9
3

7,
86

7.
93

0.
00

7,
86

7.
93

0.
00

77
4-

00
00

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-4

0.
81

40
.8

1
0.

00
40

.8
1

0.
00

U
se

 o
f 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
an

d
M

on
ey

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-8
,3

59
.8

7
8,

35
9.

87
0.

00
8,

35
9.

87
0.

00

77
0-

00
00

-3
40

10
ST

M
P 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
6,

81
5.

73
16

,8
15

.7
3

0.
00

16
,8

15
.7

3
0.

00
77

0-
00

00
-3

41
11

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-5

23
,6

70
.0

0
52

3,
67

0.
00

0.
00

52
3,

67
0.

00
0.

00
77

0-
00

00
-3

99
06

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-2

0,
02

0.
15

20
,0

20
.1

5
0.

00
20

,0
20

.1
5

0.
00

77
2-

00
00

-3
99

06
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-2
31

,9
87

.1
3

23
1,

98
7.

13
0.

00
23

1,
98

7.
13

0.
00

77
3-

00
00

-3
40

10
ST

M
P 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
,8

15
.7

3
-1

6,
81

5.
73

0.
00

-1
6,

81
5.

73
0.

00
77

4-
00

00
-3

99
06

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-7

3,
61

4.
32

73
,6

14
.3

2
0.

00
73

,6
14

.3
2

0.
00

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
R

ev
en

ue
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-8

49
,2

91
.6

0
84

9,
29

1.
60

0.
00

84
9,

29
1.

60
0.

00

R
ev

en
ue

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
,3

35
,1

11
.8

2
1,

33
5,

11
1.

82
0.

00
1,

33
5,

11
1.

82
0.

00
00

00
N

on
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
,3

35
,1

11
.8

2
1,

33
5,

11
1.

82
0.

00
1,

33
5,

11
1.

82
0.

00

77
00

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

77
0-

77
00

-3
41

11
M

em
be

r 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

0.
00

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

0.
00

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

0.
00

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

10
0.

00
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

0.
00

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

0.
00

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

0.
00

-5
23

,6
70

.0
0

10
0.

00

77
0-

77
00

-3
99

06
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

-6
9,

85
6.

00
0.

00
-6

9,
85

6.
00

0.
00

-6
9,

85
6.

00
0.

00
-6

9,
85

6.
00

10
0.

00
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

R
ev

en
ue

-6
9,

85
6.

00
0.

00
-6

9,
85

6.
00

0.
00

-6
9,

85
6.

00
0.

00
-6

9,
85

6.
00

10
0.

00

R
ev

en
ue

-5
93

,5
26

.0
0

0.
00

-5
93

,5
26

.0
0

0.
00

-5
93

,5
26

.0
0

0.
00

-5
93

,5
26

.0
0

10
0.

00
77

00
W

C
C

T
A

C
 O

pe
ra

ti
on

s
-5

93
,5

26
.0

0
0.

00
-5

93
,5

26
.0

0
0.

00
-5

93
,5

26
.0

0
0.

00
-5

93
,5

26
.0

0
10

0.
00

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

04
/0

8/
20

21
 -

 0
4:

05
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

5-1



A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
r

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

A
do

pt
ed

B
ud

ge
t

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

A
dj

us
te

d
Y

T
D

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
E

nc
um

be
re

d
A

va
ila

bl
e

%
 A

va
il

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
77

2-
77

20
-3

34
03

G
ra

nt
s

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

10
0.

00
G

ra
nt

s
-5

51
,3

17
.0

0
0.

00
-5

51
,3

17
.0

0
0.

00
-5

51
,3

17
.0

0
0.

00
-5

51
,3

17
.0

0
10

0.
00

R
ev

en
ue

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

10
0.

00
77

20
W

C
C

T
A

C
 T

D
M

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

0.
00

-5
51

,3
17

.0
0

10
0.

00

77
30

ST
M

P
77

3-
77

30
-3

43
20

H
er

cu
le

s 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

-2
,1

00
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,1
00

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
,1

00
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,1
00

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
77

3-
77

30
-3

43
30

R
ic

hm
on

d 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

-5
37

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-5
37

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-5
37

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-5
37

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
77

3-
77

30
-3

43
35

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

-2
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
30

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
L

ic
en

se
s 

an
d 

P
er

m
its

-2
,8

67
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,8
67

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
,8

67
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,8
67

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00

77
3-

77
30

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
 -

 L
A

IF
-5

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

-5
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-5

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

-5
0,

00
0.

00
10

0.
00

U
se

 o
f 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
an

d
M

on
ey

-5
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-5

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

-5
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-5

0,
00

0.
00

10
0.

00

R
ev

en
ue

-2
,9

17
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,9
17

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
,9

17
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,9
17

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
77

30
ST

M
P

-2
,9

17
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,9
17

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
,9

17
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

,9
17

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00

77
40

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
pe

ci
al

P
ro

je
ct

s
77

4-
77

40
-3

99
06

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
R

ev
en

ue
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
-2

60
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

R
ev

en
ue

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
77

40
W

C
C

T
A

C
 S

pe
ci

al
P

ro
je

ct
s

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
60

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00

E
xp

en
se

 T
ot

al
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

04
/0

8/
20

21
 -

 0
4:

05
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 2

5-2



G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 4

/8
/2

02
1 

4:
03

:2
5 

PM
Pe

ri
od

 0
1 

- 
09

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
21

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

77
00

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

77
0-

77
00

-4
10

00
Sa

la
ry

51
8,

07
1.

00
0.

00
51

8,
07

1.
00

25
6,

32
7.

27
26

1,
74

3.
73

0.
00

26
1,

74
3.

73
50

.5
2

77
0-

77
00

-4
12

00
PE

R
S 

R
et

ir
em

en
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

69
,7

42
.0

5
-6

9,
74

2.
05

0.
00

-6
9,

74
2.

05
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

13
10

M
ed

ic
al

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
51

,2
06

.1
9

-5
1,

20
6.

19
0.

00
-5

1,
20

6.
19

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
13

11
R

et
ir

ee
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
48

7.
43

-1
,4

87
.4

3
0.

00
-1

,4
87

.4
3

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
14

00
D

en
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

25
4.

33
-3

,2
54

.3
3

0.
00

-3
,2

54
.3

3
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

15
00

Fl
ex

ib
le

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
A

cc
ou

nt
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

07
0.

00
-3

,0
70

.0
0

0.
00

-3
,0

70
.0

0
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

18
00

L
T

D
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
34

1.
18

-2
,3

41
.1

8
0.

00
-2

,3
41

.1
8

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

00
M

ed
ic

ar
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
71

1.
99

-3
,7

11
.9

9
0.

00
-3

,7
11

.9
9

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

01
O

th
er

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
96

1.
89

-4
,9

61
.8

9
0.

00
-4

,9
61

.8
9

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

04
L

if
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
68

9.
97

-6
89

.9
7

0.
00

-6
89

.9
7

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

11
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e
5,

15
6.

00
0.

00
5,

15
6.

00
0.

00
5,

15
6.

00
0.

00
5,

15
6.

00
10

0.
00

Sa
la

ry
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its
52

3,
22

7.
00

0.
00

52
3,

22
7.

00
39

6,
79

2.
30

12
6,

43
4.

70
0.

00
12

6,
43

4.
70

24
.1

6

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

00
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s
5,

50
0.

00
0.

00
5,

50
0.

00
2,

38
3.

39
3,

11
6.

61
0.

00
3,

11
6.

61
56

.6
7

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

01
Po

st
ag

e
1,

80
0.

00
0.

00
1,

80
0.

00
48

2.
69

1,
31

7.
31

0.
00

1,
31

7.
31

73
.1

8
77

0-
77

00
-4

35
20

C
op

ie
sP

ri
nt

in
gS

hi
pp

in
gX

er
ox

4,
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

2,
46

9.
11

1,
53

0.
89

0.
00

1,
53

0.
89

38
.2

7
77

0-
77

00
-4

36
00

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
59

,8
25

.0
0

0.
00

59
,8

25
.0

0
41

,1
50

.6
4

18
,6

74
.3

6
0.

00
18

,6
74

.3
6

31
.2

1
77

0-
77

00
-4

39
00

R
en

tB
ui

ld
in

g
22

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

22
,5

00
.0

0
16

,0
55

.9
0

6,
44

4.
10

0.
00

6,
44

4.
10

28
.6

4
77

0-
77

00
-4

40
00

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

t E
xp

en
se

s
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
2.

00
9,

99
8.

00
0.

00
9,

99
8.

00
99

.9
8

77
0-

77
00

-4
43

20
T

ra
ve

lT
ra

in
in

g 
St

af
f

3,
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
00

0.
00

62
.3

2
2,

93
7.

68
0.

00
2,

93
7.

68
97

.9
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

10
6,

62
5.

00
0.

00
10

6,
62

5.
00

62
,6

06
.0

5
44

,0
18

.9
5

0.
00

44
,0

18
.9

5
41

.2
8

E
xp

en
se

62
9,

85
2.

00
0.

00
62

9,
85

2.
00

45
9,

39
8.

35
17

0,
45

3.
65

0.
00

17
0,

45
3.

65
27

.0
6

77
00

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

62
9,

85
2.

00
0.

00
62

9,
85

2.
00

45
9,

39
8.

35
17

0,
45

3.
65

0.
00

17
0,

45
3.

65
27

.0
6

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
77

2-
77

20
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
30

1,
86

9.
00

0.
00

30
1,

86
9.

00
13

5,
33

2.
12

16
6,

53
6.

88
0.

00
16

6,
53

6.
88

55
.1

7
77

2-
77

20
-4

12
00

PE
R

S 
R

et
ir

em
en

t
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
47

,3
61

.8
7

-4
7,

36
1.

87
0.

00
-4

7,
36

1.
87

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
13

10
M

ed
ic

al
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

26
,5

06
.3

7
-2

6,
50

6.
37

0.
00

-2
6,

50
6.

37
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

14
00

D
en

ta
l I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
81

2.
80

-1
,8

12
.8

0
0.

00
-1

,8
12

.8
0

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
18

00
L

T
D

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
98

1.
54

-9
81

.5
4

0.
00

-9
81

.5
4

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

00
M

ed
ic

ar
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
94

1.
50

-1
,9

41
.5

0
0.

00
-1

,9
41

.5
0

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

01
O

th
er

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
96

1.
88

-4
,9

61
.8

8
0.

00
-4

,9
61

.8
8

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

04
L

if
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
22

8.
91

-2
28

.9
1

0.
00

-2
28

.9
1

0.
00

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

04
/0

8/
20

21
 -

 0
4:

03
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

5-3



A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

11
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e
5,

15
6.

00
0.

00
5,

15
6.

00
0.

00
5,

15
6.

00
0.

00
5,

15
6.

00
10

0.
00

Sa
la

ry
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its
30

7,
02

5.
00

0.
00

30
7,

02
5.

00
21

9,
12

6.
99

87
,8

98
.0

1
0.

00
87

,8
98

.0
1

28
.6

3

77
2-

77
20

-4
33

00
M

em
be

rs
hi

ps
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
1,

61
0.

00
0.

00
1,

61
0.

00
20

0.
00

1,
41

0.
00

0.
00

1,
41

0.
00

87
.5

8
77

2-
77

20
-4

35
00

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s

19
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
19

,0
00

.0
0

25
5.

68
18

,7
44

.3
2

0.
00

18
,7

44
.3

2
98

.6
5

77
2-

77
20

-4
35

01
T

D
M

 P
os

ta
ge

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

21
7.

46
-2

17
.4

6
0.

00
-2

17
.4

6
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

35
02

T
D

M
 P

os
ta

ge
95

0.
00

0.
00

95
0.

00
0.

00
95

0.
00

0.
00

95
0.

00
10

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
35

20
C

op
ie

sP
ri

nt
in

gS
hi

pp
in

gX
er

ox
11

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

11
,0

00
.0

0
4,

26
4.

30
6,

73
5.

70
0.

00
6,

73
5.

70
61

.2
3

77
2-

77
20

-4
36

00
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

68
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
68

,0
00

.0
0

43
,6

95
.9

8
24

,3
04

.0
2

0.
00

24
,3

04
.0

2
35

.7
4

77
2-

77
20

-4
39

00
R

en
tB

ui
ld

in
g

22
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
22

,5
00

.0
0

16
,0

51
.4

7
6,

44
8.

53
0.

00
6,

44
8.

53
28

.6
6

77
2-

77
20

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

12
0,

07
7.

00
0.

00
12

0,
07

7.
00

14
,5

82
.9

4
10

5,
49

4.
06

0.
00

10
5,

49
4.

06
87

.8
6

77
2-

77
20

-4
43

20
T

ra
ve

lT
ra

in
in

g 
St

af
f

1,
15

5.
00

0.
00

1,
15

5.
00

19
5.

00
96

0.
00

0.
00

96
0.

00
83

.1
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

24
4,

29
2.

00
0.

00
24

4,
29

2.
00

79
,4

62
.8

3
16

4,
82

9.
17

0.
00

16
4,

82
9.

17
67

.4
7

E
xp

en
se

55
1,

31
7.

00
0.

00
55

1,
31

7.
00

29
8,

58
9.

82
25

2,
72

7.
18

0.
00

25
2,

72
7.

18
45

.8
4

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
55

1,
31

7.
00

0.
00

55
1,

31
7.

00
29

8,
58

9.
82

25
2,

72
7.

18
0.

00
25

2,
72

7.
18

45
.8

4

77
30

ST
M

P
77

3-
77

30
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
55

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

55
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
55

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

55
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

Sa
la

ry
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its
55

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

55
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
55

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

55
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

77
3-

77
30

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
3,

17
1,

95
5.

00
0.

00
3,

17
1,

95
5.

00
0.

00
3,

17
1,

95
5.

00
0.

00
3,

17
1,

95
5.

00
10

0.
00

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

3,
17

1,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
17

1,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
17

1,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
17

1,
95

5.
00

10
0.

00

E
xp

en
se

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

10
0.

00
77

30
ST

M
P

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

0.
00

3,
22

6,
95

5.
00

10
0.

00

77
40

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s
77

4-
77

40
-4

40
00

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

t E
xp

en
se

26
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
26

0,
00

0.
00

73
,6

14
.3

2
18

6,
38

5.
68

0.
00

18
6,

38
5.

68
71

.6
9

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

26
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
26

0,
00

0.
00

73
,6

14
.3

2
18

6,
38

5.
68

0.
00

18
6,

38
5.

68
71

.6
9

E
xp

en
se

26
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
26

0,
00

0.
00

73
,6

14
.3

2
18

6,
38

5.
68

0.
00

18
6,

38
5.

68
71

.6
9

77
40

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s
26

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

26
0,

00
0.

00
73

,6
14

.3
2

18
6,

38
5.

68
0.

00
18

6,
38

5.
68

71
.6

9

E
xp

en
se

 T
ot

al
4,

66
8,

12
4.

00
0.

00
4,

66
8,

12
4.

00
83

1,
60

2.
49

3,
83

6,
52

1.
51

0.
00

3,
83

6,
52

1.
51

0.
82

19

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

04
/0

8/
20

21
 -

 0
4:

03
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 2

5-4



  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: April 23, 2021 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Transportation Planning Manager  

RE: FY 21-22 Annual STMP Fee Adjustment  

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Information only. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The 2019 STMP Update became effective on July 1, 2019.  The Master Cooperative 
Agreement, signed by all partner agencies, specifies an automatic annual fee adjustment so 
that the fees keep up with construction related inflation.  The agreement specifies that the 
fee adjustment is based on the Engineering News Record’s February San Francisco Bay Area 
Construction Cost Index that covers the prior twelve months.  This year that rate was 2.4%.  
(By way of comparison, last year the adjustment was 5.6%.)  WCCTAC staff is in the process of 
notifying the partner agencies of this impending annual fee adjustment which becomes 
effective July 1.   
 
The FY 20-21 and FY 21-22 STMP fees are shown below.  
 

 
The STMP Quarterly Reporting form for FY 21-22 is included as an attachment.  Local agency 
staff should begin using this version to report STMP fees after July 1, 2021. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
A. FY 2021-2022 STMP Quarterly Reporting Form 

FY 21-22 STMP Fee Rate

5,881$             
2,897$             
1,588$             
3,764$             

0.82$              
7.13$              
6.01$              
9.43$              

7,948$             

Type of Fee

Industrial
Office

Single Family
Multi Family
Senior Housing 
Hotel (per room)

Retail / Service
Storage Facility

STMP Fee per 
Square ft.

STMP Fee   
per Unit

Other (per AM pk hr trip)

FY 20-21 STMP Fee Rates

5,744$             
2,829$             
1,551$             
3,676$             

0.80$              
6.96$              
5.87$              
9.21$              

7,762$             

STMP Fee per 
Square ft.

STMP Fee   
per Unit

Other (per AM pk hr trip)

Storage Facility

Industrial
Office

Single Family
Multi Family
Senior Housing 
Hotel (per room)

Retail / Service

Type of Fee

7-1



C
he

ck
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 B

ox
:

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r:

  _
__

__
__

__
R

ep
or

tin
g 

Pe
rio

d:
FY

 Q
1

FY
 Q

2
FY

 Q
3

FY
 Q

4
Al

l s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 re

po
rt 

m
us

t b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.

Ju
ly

-S
ep

t
O

ct
-D

ec
Ja

n-
M

ar
Ap

r-J
un

e
At

ta
ch

 c
he

ck
, p

ay
ab

le
 to

 W
C

C
TA

C
, t

o 
th

is
 re

po
rt.

Fe
e 

Su
bm

itt
al

 D
ue

 D
at

e:
31

-O
ct

30
-J

an
30

-A
pr

31
-J

ul
Su

bm
it 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 tr
an

sm
itt

al
 re

po
rt 

to
:

W
C

C
TA

C
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n'
s 

N
am

e:
63

33
 P

ot
re

ro
 A

ve
., 

Su
ite

 1
00

El
 C

er
rit

o,
 C

A 
 9

45
30

C
on

ta
ct

 N
am

e:

C
on

ta
ct

 E
m

ai
l:

   
   

 N
o 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
re

po
rt

 th
is

 p
er

io
d.

 O
R

N
ot

es
:

In
se

rt 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

# 
of

 U
ni

ts
 o

r #
 o

f S
q.

 F
t. 

to
 c

al
cu

la
te

 th
e 

am
nt

. o
f f

ee
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

.
Li

st
 e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t o

r p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y.
  A

dd
 ro

w
s 

as
 n

ee
de

d.

5,
88

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
89

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
58

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
76

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

0.
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

7.
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

6.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

9.
43

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

7,
94

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  T

O
TA

L 
FE

ES
 C

O
LL

EC
TE

D
:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

Th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f y

ou
r c

he
ck

 to
 W

C
C

TA
C

. 

If 
a 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

is
 c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
ST

M
P 

fe
es

 fo
r a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

at
 a

 ra
te

 d
iff

er
en

t t
ha

n 
w

ha
t i

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 in

 e
ffe

ct
,  

pr
ov

id
e 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

 th
e 

na
m

e 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

s 
of

 e
ac

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 re

as
on

 a
pp

lie
s:

A.
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

gr
ee

m
en

t e
xe

cu
te

d 
on

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
;

B.
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ub

m
itt

ed
 a

 v
es

tin
g 

te
nt

at
iv

e 
m

ap
 th

at
 w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

on
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
;

C
.

O
th

er
 (e

xp
la

in
 le

ga
l b

as
is

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t n

ot
 p

ay
in

g 
cu

rre
nt

 a
do

pt
ed

 ra
te

s;
 n

.b
., 

a 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

in
 a

 p
rio

r y
ea

r a
lo

ne
 is

 a
n 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

xp
la

na
tio

n)
  _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
.

Ty
pe

 o
f F

ee

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ub
m

it 
th

is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
rm

 to
 W

C
C

TA
C

 n
o 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
30

 d
ay

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

cl
os

e 
of

 e
ac

h 
ca

le
nd

ar
 q

ua
rte

r; 
w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
fe

es
 to

 s
ub

m
it,

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

M
as

te
r C

oo
pe

ra
tiv

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t.

ST
M

P 
$ 

C
ol

le
ct

ed
Pr

oj
ec

t A
dd

re
ss

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t N
am

e

In
du

st
ria

l
O

ffi
ce

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

M
ul

ti 
Fa

m
ily

Se
ni

or
 H

ou
si

ng
 

H
ot

el
 (p

er
 ro

om
)

R
et

ai
l /

 S
er

vi
ce

St
or

ag
e 

Fa
ci

lit
y

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Su
br

eg
io

na
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (S
TM

P)
 D

ev
el

op
er

 F
ee

s
JU

R
IS

D
IC

TI
O

N
S'

 Q
U

AR
TE

R
LY

 T
R

AN
SM

IT
TA

L 
R

EP
O

R
T 

FO
R

M

ST
M

P 
Fe

e 
pe

r 
Sq

ua
re

 ft
.

To
ta

l #
 U

ni
ts

 
or

 S
q.

 F
t.

ST
M

P 
Fe

e 
  p

er
 

U
ni

t

O
th

er
 (p

er
 A

M
 p

k 
hr

 tr
ip

)

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

7-2



D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

rio
d,

 h
as

 y
ou

r a
ge

nc
y 

gr
an

te
d:

1.
ST

M
P 

Fe
e 

C
re

di
ts

 to
 a

ny
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t?

   
   

   
Ye

s
   

   
  N

o
2.

ST
M

P 
Fe

e 
W

ai
ve

rs
/E

xe
m

pt
io

ns
 to

 a
ny

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t?
   

   
   

Ye
s

   
   

  N
o

 If
 y

es
 to

 e
ith

er
 o

f t
he

 a
bo

ve
, p

le
as

e 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ag

e.

If 
ST

M
P 

C
re

di
ts

 w
er

e 
gr

an
te

d,
 fo

r e
ac

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 b

el
ow

:
1.

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

na
m

e 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
je

ct
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

th
e 

cr
ed

it?
2.

W
ha

t w
as

 th
e 

do
lla

r v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 c
re

di
t?

  
3.

W
hi

ch
 o

f t
he

 2
0 

ST
M

P 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

as
 th

e 
cr

ed
it 

us
ed

 fo
r?

4.
W

ha
t e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 S

TM
P 

pr
oj

ec
t w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
cr

ed
ite

d 
fu

nd
s?

If 
W

ai
ve

rs
/E

xe
m

pt
io

ns
 o

f S
TM

P 
Fe

es
 w

er
e 

gr
an

te
d,

 fo
r e

ac
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 b

el
ow

:
1.

W
er

e 
al

l o
th

er
 lo

ca
l f

ee
s 

w
ai

ve
d/

ex
em

pt
ed

 fo
r t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
je

ct
?

   
   

   
Ye

s
   

   
  N

o
2.

Br
ie

fly
 e

xp
la

in
 w

hy
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

's
 S

TM
P 

fe
e 

w
as

 w
ai

ve
d/

ex
em

pt
ed

?

R
ev

is
ed

 6
/3

0/
20

20

Re
sp

on
d 

to
 D

iff
er

en
t F

ee
 R

at
es

/C
re

di
t a

nd
 W

ai
ve

r/
Ex

em
pt

io
n 

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 h

er
e:

   
 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2

7-3





  
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: April 23, 2021 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Project Manager   

RE: Developer Request to Appeal STMP Fees for Mayfair Project 11600 San Pablo 
Ave., El Cerrito 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
1.) Deny the developer’s appeal on the grounds that the 2019 STMP, and not the 2006 

STMP, is applicable.  
2.) Request that the City of El Cerrito not issue an occupancy permit until the remaining 

STMP fees on residential development are paid. 
3.) Waive fees on the retail portion of the project which was mistakenly not assessed by the 

City. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Context 
In 2019, WCCTAC completed its update to its Subregional Transportation Mitigation Fee 
(STMP) Program.  The update clarified an appeals process for STMP fees and stated in the 
Master Cooperative Agreement that “The WCCTAC Board shall consider the appeal at a 
regularly scheduled meeting and shall make a decision on the appeal. The decision of the 
WCCTAC Board is final.”  The Board is being asked at its April meeting to decide on a 
developer’s request to appeal the amount of STMP fees assessed. 
 
The Administrative Guidelines for the 2019 STMP noted that fee appeals must be made at 
the time that fees are paid in full.  In this case, the appeal was made about a year after the 
partial payment of fees.  Nevertheless, staff believes that the developer may not have been 
made aware of the details of the appeal procedures.  As a result, staff and WCCTAC’s counsel 
recommend that the appeal be considered on its merits and not dismissed on procedural 
grounds.  
 
Appeal Details 
On March 4, 2021, WCCTAC staff received a letter from Jamie Hiteshew of Holliday 
Development requesting a reduction in the Subregional Transportation Mitigation Fee 
Program (STMP) fees due.  That appeal letter is included as Attachment A.  Holliday 
Development is the developer for a mixed-use retail and housing development in El Cerrito at 
11600 San Pablo Ave.  The overall project includes two phases:  1) 156 market-rate, multi-
family units with 8,894 square feet of retail and 2) 67 below market, multi-family units.  The 

8-1



City of El Cerrito has issued building permits for the first phase, which is the subject of this 
appeal.   
 
By February 2019, the applicant submitted a building permit application and paid city fees for 
processing the application (n.b. the applicant’s appeal letter cites both February 2018 and 
2019 as the submittal date.  The actual building permit application was submitted in February 
2019.).  At that time, El Cerrito staff provided the applicant with a STMP fee estimate of 
$257,088 for the project’s multi-family housing component based on the 2006 STMP fee 
schedule, which was in place at that time.   
 
The WCCTAC Board approved the new STMP in December 2018. This was followed by a 
formal notice to City Managers in January 2019 and a presentation to the El Cerrito City 
Council in March 2019. The El Cerrito City Council adopted the updated STMP ordinance in 
April 2019, and the 2019 STMP fees went into effect in El Cerrito on July 1, 2019. The Master 
Cooperative Agreement for the 2019 STMP Update, adopted by all STMP partner agencies, 
became effective on that same date.   
 
The applicant sought issuance of its building permit in March 2020 and, according to El 
Cerrito staff, the applicant was notified verbally at that time that the STMP fees had changed.  
The City issued the building permits and accepted partial STMP fees in the amount of 
$257,088 for the housing component.  According to El Cerrito staff, their understanding was 
that the applicant would return and submit the remainder of the STMP fees at a later date.  
By at least April 2020, El Cerrito staff notified the applicant of the amount of STMP fees owed 
given the implementation of the 2019 STMP Update eight months prior.     
 
In July of 2020, the applicant reached out to WCCTAC staff to discuss the fee estimate and 
the increase in fees.  WCCTAC staff explained when the new STMP fees became effective and 
that the fee schedule in place at the issuance of building permits was applicable. Based on 
the information provided by the applicant, WCCTAC staff further explained that, while 
appeals are possible, it did not sound like there was a convincing argument for appealing the 
fee.  Approximately nine months later, on March 4, 2021 WCCTAC received the developer’s 
written request to appeal the STMP fee assessment.  
 
Staff Recommendation Based on Counsel Review 
Section 4.52.040 of the El Cerrito Municipal Code provides that the STMP Fees are “payable 
to the city at the time of issuance of a building permit.” This is consistent with the 
ordinance adopted by the other WCCTAC jurisdictions as well as the cooperative 
agreement. At the time the applicant was issued a building permit, the 2019 STMP Fees 
were in effect. Although the applicant had submitted the building permit application 
before the 2019 STMP Fees went into effect, the STMP fee is not vested until a building 
permit is issued, except in specific situations authorized by statute (such as when the 
applicant has received a statutory development agreement or vesting tentative map). The 
applicant did not obtain any of type of vesting approval that entitled it to pay the 2006 STMP 

8-2



Fee, and the applicant has not provided evidence that the older fees vested in some other 
manner.   
 
The applicant’s claim is that the fees due should be based on an earlier fee estimate provided 
by El Cerrito staff.  However, according to the 2019 STMP Master Cooperative Agreement 
and the El Cerrito Municipal Code, the STMP fee rate in place at the issuance of building 
permits is the basis for calculating the STMP fees.  The 2019 STMP Fees have been 
consistently applied in this matter throughout West Contra Costa County.  In this case, the 
building permit was issued in March 2020, nine months after the new fees went into effect.  
 
In addition to requesting that fees on 156 residential units be based on the 2006 STMP, 
rather than the 2019 STMP, the developer has asked for an additional discount and refund.  
The 2006 Program allowed for a fee reduction if an applicant could show in a traffic study 
that the trip generation for a proposed development was lower than Nexus Study analysis.  
The developer cited Section 4.52.040 (E) of the City of El Cerrito’s STMP Ordinance.  
However, this is a reference to the previous ordinance, which was replaced in July 2019 and 
is not applicable to the project for the reasons described above.  The 2019 STMP fee 
program only allows for the use of a traffic study to set fees when none of the standard land 
use categories are applicable and the land use falls into the “Other” category. Since the 
applicant is subject to the 2019 STMP Fees, there is no basis to award a fee reduction based 
on a supplemental traffic study. 
 
Lastly, the City of El Cerrito mistakenly did not estimate or request payment from the 
applicant for the STMP fees related to the retail portion of the project.  This provided the 
developer with an unintentional discount.  The retail component of the project should have 
been assessed a fee of $58,611.46 (8,894 sf x $6.59).   
 
Had the City calculated the fee correctly at the time of the issuance of building permits in 
March 2020, the developer would owe $476,535.46 ($417,924 residential + $58,611.46 
retail).  The City requested $417,924, based solely on the residential component.  The 
developer paid $257,088 in March 2020 based on a fee estimate provided by the City before 
the 2019 Program went into effect.  According to El Cerrito staff, in March 2020, the City 
provided the applicant with a revised fee estimate.  The developer is requesting that its 
payment amount revert to the previous fee level, and that it also be refunded $87,410 based 
on a provision in the 2006 Program that no longer applied when the developer’s STMP fees 
were due.   
 
Staff recommends that the WCCTAC Board deny the appeal and that the applicant pay the 
difference between the STMP fees previously paid and those due for the residential 
component of the project in the amount of $160,086 ($417,924 - $257,088).  Staff further 
recommends that the City not issue an occupancy permit until this fee is paid.  (WCCTAC and 
El Cerrito staff have conferred, and the City is willing and legally able to hold issuance until 
STMP fees are paid.) Given that the developer was never made aware that STMP fees applied 

8-3



to its retail development, staff recommends that the WCCTAC Board waive that retail portion 
of the fee. 
 
Finally, WCCTAC staff wants to note the cooperation of El Cerrito staff in researching the 
series of events related to this appeal.  El Cerrito’s Community Development Director has 
assured staff that future mixed-use development projects will be assessed the correct STMP 
fee for all components and that the City will review how to better communicate the appeal 
process to applicants.   
 
Hearing Process for April Board Meeting 
WCCTAC staff confirmed its acceptance of the submitted appeal and has notified the 
applicant that the matter will be considered by the WCCTAC Board at its April meeting.  Staff 
and counsel recommend the following process at the Board meeting: 
 

1) Staff gives a presentation reviewing the background and recommendation. 
2) Board may ask clarifying questions of staff.  
3) Appellant has opportunity to present its case. 
4) Board takes public comment. 
5) Board may ask clarifying questions of applicant and return to staff for any clarification. 
6) After questions, the Board may deliberate and make a decision through its normal 

motion process.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. March 4, 2021 Holliday Development Letter Re:  STMP Fee- Mayfair Project 11600 San 

Pablo Avenue including attachment. 

 

8-4



H O L L I D A Y  D E V E L O P M E N T ,  L L C  

1500 PARK AVENUE #100 

EMERYVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94608 

T: 510-547-2122    F: 510-547-2125 

 
March 4, 2021 
 
Leah Greenblat 
Transportation Planning Manager 
WCCTAC 
6333 Potrero Ave 
El Cerrito, CA 94530 
 
Re: STMP Fee – Mayfair Project 11600 San Pablo Avenue 
 
Ms. Greenblat, 
 
I am writing in reference to West County Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (“STMP”) fee for 
our Mayfair project, located at 11600 San Pablo Avenue. The subject project includes 156 residential 
units and 8,894 square feet of retail space. Mayfair received final Design Review Board approval from the 
City of El Cerrito in August 2017. Holliday Development submitted a building permit application for 
Mayfair in February 2019, the City issued a grading permit in September 2019, and the final building 
permit was issued in March 2020. 
 
At the time of final Design Review Board approval, the project was subject to the following public 
infrastructure fees: 

 Applicant shall pay a fair share of the San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan Complete Streets 
Improvements as determined by the Public Works Director 

 STMP Multifamily Residential Fee totaling $257,088 
 
Subsequent to the project approval, the City ratified its TIF program in December 2018. Holliday 
understands that the TIF represents Mayfair’s “fair share of the Pablo Avenue Specific Plan Complete 
Streets Improvements.” 
 
The STMP regulations include previsions for fee reductions if a project meets specific criteria. I am writing 
to outline the ways in which Mayfair qualifies for fee reductions. For a full summary of the fee reduction 
request, please reference Exhibit F enclosed here. In total, we are requesting an STMP fee reduction of 
$87,410. 
 
WCCTAC STMP 
 
Permit Fee Estimate and Final Invoice for Mayfair 
When Holliday submitted a building permit application in February 2018, the City issued an invoice 
detailing the fees the project was subject to at both building permit application and building permit 
issuance – included here as Exhibit A. The invoice quotes an STMP fee of $257,088. Upon issuance of the 

8A-1



building permit in March 2020, the City issued a final fee invoice – included here as Exhibit B. Once again, 
this invoice included an STMP fee of $257,088. Holliday paid all appropriate fees at this time and the 
building permit was issued. 
 
Subsequent to building permit issuance, the City informed Holliday of an increase to the STMP fee. The 
quoted STMP fee now totals $417,924 – or a 63% increase over the fee paid at building issuance.  
 
Holliday closed on our construction financing with a budget informed by the City fee schedule and 
invoices received directly from the City. At no point during the building permit review process was 
Holliday informed of a potential increase to the STMP fee. This is despite having an open building permit 
application. We paid the STMP fee based on the invoices received at building permit application and 
issuance. 
 
An unexpected – and retroactive – 63% increase to the STMP fee places an undue economic hardship on 
the project. Given the date of Design Review Board approval and building permit application, we believe 
the project was legally vested under the fee in place at the time of the building permit application. We 
respectfully request that the project be held to the original STMP fee of $257,088.  
 
STMP Fee Reduction – Trip Reduction & Public Infrastructure  
The City of El Cerrito adopted ordinance 2006-07 on August 21, 2006 (“City STMP Ordinance”), included 
here as Exhibit C. The ordinance was adopted to “implement the collection of fees relative to the STMP in 
order to provide funding for regional transportation improvements necessary for each jurisdiction.” The 
program levies a fee on new developments in order to fund eleven specific projects with the goal of 
mitigating “impacts as a direct result of the projects, since growth places a greater burden on the 
roadway and transit systems.” 
 
The STMP fee schedule was developed based on the 2005 Update of the Subregional Transportation 
Impact Program prepared by TJKM Transportation Consultants (“2005 Nexus”), included here as Exhibit 
D. At the time of the 2006 ordinance, the multi-family residential development fee was established at an 
amount of $1,648 per dwelling unit.  
 
The City STMP Ordinance established two means by which a project can reduce the amount of STMP: 

1) If the project will generate lower numbers of trips than the data provided by the Institute of 
Traffic Engineers (ITE) that was used as the basis for the 2005 Nexus (section 4.52.040 D) 

2) If the project constructs improvements for specific 2006 STMP Projects (section 4.52.040 E) 
 
Trip Reduction 
As part of the CEQA analysis for Mayfair, Fehr & Peers prepared a Transportation Analysis for the project 
in 2017, included here as Exhibit E. The report concluded that Mayfair would generate 67 AM Peak Hour 
trips. The 2005 Nexus projected 100.95 AM Peak Hour trips for a project with Mayfair’s residential unit 
count and retail space sizing. Mayfair’s projected trip generation is 34% less than the 2005 Nexus 
projections. 
 
Section 4.52.040 (E) of the City STMP Ordinance states that if a project is subject to a fee reduction due 
to lower trip generation, then “the City of El Cerrito shall determine the appropriate fee reduction based 
on the proportionate reduction in trips demonstrated in the traffic study.” 
 
 

8A-2



Mayfair’s projected trip generation is 34% less than the 2005 Nexus projections. As a result, Holliday is 
requesting a 34% reduction in the STMP – or $87,410. The total STMP fee for the project would therefore 
total $169,678. Please see Exhibit F for our analysis of the Mayfair trip generation in comparison to the 
2005 Nexus. 
 
Summary 
 
We respectfully request the following revisions to the STMP fee: 

1) STMP base fee reverts to $257,088. 
2) STMP net fee revised to $169,678 based on lower trip generation. 

 
Holliday is proud to partner with the City of El Cerrito and WCCTAC on this project. This is a 
transformative project for the Del Norte BART station area. In addition to 156 units of housing, the 
project will deliver significant public infrastructure improvements. We very much appreciate your review 
and consideration of our request for a reduction in STMP fees. We believe the proposed fees reductions 
are commiserate with the project’s contribution to the Del Norte neighborhood and the WCCTAC service 
area. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions at jamie@hollidaydevelopment.com or (510) 
588-5147. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Jamie Hiteshew 
Holliday Development 
 
Encl: 
 
STMP Exhibit A - Permit Submittal Fees Receipt 19-0206 
STMP Exhibit B - Final Building Permit Invoice 20-0304 
STMP Exhibit C - STMP El Cerrito Ordinance 2006 
STMP Exhibit D - WCCTAC Nexus Study 2005 Update 
STMP Exhibit E - Mayfair Transportation Analysis 
STMP Exhibit F - Mayfair Trip Generation & Fee Summary  
 

g

amimimmmiimiimiimimiimiimimiiimiiimimimimmiiimiimimmmmmimiiiiimimmmmiiiimimmmmmimiiiiimmiiiiimmmmmiimmmimmimmmmiimmmiimimimmmmmiimmmmiimmmmiiimmmiiimimmmmiimmmiimimmmimmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmimmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm e Hiteshew

8A-3



STMP Exhibit A - Permit Submittal
Fees Receipt 19-0206

8A-4



8A-5



8A-6



8A-7



Balance Due: 868,216.42TOTAL ELECTRICAL:

PERMIT SHALL EXPIRE IF AN INSPECTION IS NOT PASSED WITHIN 180 DAYS OF PERMIT ISSUE, OR WITHIN 180 DAYS OF A PREVIOUS INSPECTION. ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED AS AN APPROVAL OF ANY VIOLATION OF THE BUILDING, 
ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, OR MUNICIPAL CODES. CLEARANCE FROM ALL DEPARTMNET AND JURISDICTIONS AND PAYMENT OF ALL APPLICABLE FEES ARE REQUIRED BEFORE FINAL INSPECTION WILL BE MADE.

APPROVED: 

__Owner  __Contractor          Agent for: __Owner  __Contractor City of El Cerrito/Building Division

____ I hereby affirm  that I have a certificate of consent to self-
insure, or a certificate of Workers Compensation Insurance.

Total Building: 1,122,194.31

____ I certify that in the performance of the work for which this 
permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so 
as to be come subject to the Workers Compensation Laws of 
California.

Total Fees Charged: 1,122,194.31
Paid: 253,977.89

ACCT NO. ACCT NO. 6055

PLANNING DIVISION PLAN REVIEW FEE 54,735.52
____ I am exempt under Section ___________Business and 
Professions Code for this reason. _________________________

WORKER COMPENSATION DECLARATION:

____ I, as owner of the property, am  exclusively contracting with 
licensed contractors to construct the project.(Section 7044. 
Buisiness and Professions Code. The Contractor's License Law 
does not apply to an owner of property who builds or improves 
there on: and who contracts for such projects with a contractor(s) ) 
licensed pursuant to the Contracto's License 

SPECIFIC PLAN MAINTENANCE FEE - RESIDENTIAL 31,200.00

TOTAL PLUMBING:
ACCT NO. 6030

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 1,263.00CBSC - CALIF. BUILDING STANDARDS FUND

BUILDING INTAKE AND PLAN REVIEW NEW CONSTRUCTIO 107,766.63
ACCT NO. 6020

SMIP CATEGORY 2 COMMERCIAL 8,840.42
ACCT NO. 6027

362,700.00ACCT NO. TIF MULTIFAMILY
ACCT NO. 6001

____ I, as owner of the property, or my employees with wages as 
their sole compensation, will do the work and the structure is not 
intended for sale.(Section 7044, Buisness and Professions Code 
The Contractor's License Law does not apply to an owner of 
property who builds or improves there on, and who does such work 
himself or through his own employees, provided tht such 
improvements are not intended or offered for sale. If, however, the 
building or improvement is sold within one year of completion, the 
owner-builder will have the burden of proving that he did not build 
or improve for the purpose of sale)

5.00CONTINUING EDUCATION
NEW CONSTRUCTION ISSUANCE AND INSPECTION 165,910.97

ACCT NO. 6013

ACCT NO. 3011

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PLAN REVIEW FEE 54,735.52TOTAL MECHANICAL:
ACCT NO. 4000

PLUMBING EQUIPMENT TIF COMMERCIAL 39,840.64

OWNER/BUILDER DECLARATION: CONSTRUCTION TAX RATE 1,368.39

____ I am exempt form the Contractor's License Law for the 
following reason (Section 7031.5. Buisiness and Professions code. 
Any city or conty which requires a permit to construct, alter, 
improve, demolish, or repair and structure, prior to its issuance, 
also requires the applicant for such permit to file a signed statement 
that he is licensed pursuant to the provisions of the Contractor's 
License Law [Chapter 9(commencing with Section 7000) of 
Divison 3 of the Buiness and Professions Code) of that he is 
exempt there from and the basis for the alleged exemption. Any 
violations of Section 7031.5 by any applicant for a permit subjects 
the applicat to a civil penalty of not more than five hundred 
dollars($500)

ACCT NO. 1705
DOCUMENT IMAGING FEE 0.00

ACCT NO. 2516

FIRE NEW CONST PC AND INSP 36,740.22

LICENSED CONTRACTOR DECLARATION: ACCT NO. 1088ACCT NO. 
____ I am licensed under the provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing 
with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions 
Code and my license is in full force and effect.

STMP MULTI FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 257,088.00

ACCT NO. 1130

0

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: FINAL APPROVALS REQUIRED
NEW MULTI-FAMILY MIXED USE 153 UNIT BUILDING W/PODIUM PARKIN

BUILDING:        PLANNING:  
FIRE:            ENGINEERING:    
WQC:            HEALTH DEPT:   
POLICE:          

I hereby affirm(check one): MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT BUILDING FEES

0

,  ,  JOB VALUATION REMODEL SQ FT

PHONE: License No: PHONE: License No: $31,572,927

PHONE: PHONE: License No: 0

CONTR.: TBD ENGINEER: IMPERVIOUS SURFACE ADDITION SQ FT

0.00

10890 SAN PABLO AVE 360 17TH STREET 0

EL CERRITO, CA 94530-2392 OAKLAND,CA 94612 CONSTRUCTION TYPE LOT SQ FT

OWNER: EL CERRITO MUNI SERVICES ARCHITECT: LOWNEY ARCHITECTS OCCUPANCY GROUP EX. BLDG SQ FT 

JOB :ADDRESS: 11600 SAN PABLO AVENUE EXP. DATE:

APN: 502062029 Type of Permit: RESIDENTIAL Subtype NEW MULTI-FAMILY Parent Permit:

CITY OF EL CERRITO PERMIT NUMBER:

 Building Division BD19-0076
10890 San Pablo Avenue

El Cerrito, CA 94530
Ph: (510) 215-4360

DATE ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

STMP Exhibit B - Final Building
Permit Invoice 20-0304

8A-8



STMP Exhibit C - STMP El Cerrito
Ordinance 2006

8A-9



8A-10



8A-11



8A-12



8A-13



8A-14



8A-15



8A-16



8A-17



FINAL

2005 Update of the
Subregional Transportation Mitigation
Program (STMP)

For the West Contra Costa Transportation
Advisory Committee (WCCTAC)

May 5, 2006

Prepared by:

TJKM Transportation Consultants
5960 Inglewood Drive, Suite 100
Pleasanton CA 94588-8535
Tel: 925.463.0611
Fax: 925.463.3690

2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page I of 20
May 5, 2006

STMP Exhibit D - WCCTAC Nexus Study 2005 Update

8A-18



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 2 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

TABLE OFCONTENTS

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY.................................................................................4

INTRODUCTION...................................................................................................................................................... 4
SUMMARY   ..................................................................•. ................................................................................4

Chapter 2-Er:pected Growth In Households, Employment and Peak Hour Trips ................................... 4
Chapter3-Proje<..'tList and Priorities.......................................................................................................... 5
Chapter 4 -SH IP Previous Collections and Potential Yield From 2005 Update...................................... 5
Chapter 5 -Program Costs and Fee Calculation......................................................................................... 5
Chapter6-Nexus Findings.....................................................................................................................5

CHAPTER 2. EXPECTED GROWTH IN HOUSEHOLDS, EMPLOMENT AND PEAK HOUR TRIPS
IN THE WCCTAC AREA.........................................................................................................................7

HOUSEHOLD GROWTH ........................................................•. ...............................................................................7
EMPLOYMENT GROWTH....................................................................................................................................... 7
TRIP GENERATION ................................................................................................  ····························.......·········· 8

CHAPTER 3. SELECTION AND COST OF PROJECTS..........................................................................10

PROJECT OESCRIPTIONS...•......•...........................•.......•..........................•.......................•. ..................................... 10
I. Richmond Intermodal Station ................................................................................................................ 10
2. Interchanges on I-80 at San Pablo Dam Road and Central Avenue and on Highway 4 at Willow ... 11
3. Capitol Corridor...................................................................................................................................... 12
4. Ferry Service to San Francisco from  Richmond and/or Hercules/Rodeo............................................. 12

5. BART Access and I or Parking Improvements ................................................................................12
6. Bay Trail Gap Closure .....................................................................................................................13

7. San Pablo Dam Road Improvements in Downtown El Sobrante ..........................................................13
8. San Pablo Avenue Corridor Improvements .....................................................................................13
9. North Richmond Road Connection Project .....................................................................................14
10. Hercules Transit Center .................................................................................................................14

11. Del Norte Area Transit Oriented Development project (public improvements) ...................................15

CHAPTER 4. STMP PREVIOUS COLLECTIONS AND 2005 UPDATE POTENTIAL FEE
REVENUES...................................................................................................................................................16

COLLECTIONS To DATE .........................................................................................................................16
POTENTIAL FEE REVENUES FROM 2005 UPDATE...........................................................................................16

CHAPTER 5. PROGRAM COSTS AND FEE CALCULATION............................................................17

UPDATED COST PER TRIP ESTIMATE ..............................................................................................................•..     17
OTHER FACTORSINSTMP UPDATE..........................................................................................................18

CHAPTER 6.  NEXUS FINDINGS ...................................................................................................................19

CHAPTER 7. STUDY PARTICIPANTS ............................................................................................... 20

TJKM TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS PERSONNEL................................................................................................20
THE REEO GROUP.............................................................................................................................................................20
PERSONS/AGENCIES CONSULTED/WCCT AC --TAC MEMBERS..........................................................................20

8A-19



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 3 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE I:HOUSEHOLD GROWTH INWEST CONTRA COSTA COUNTY -2005 TO 2030 ................................................. 7
TABLE II: EMPLOYMENT GROWTH INWEST CONTRA COSTA COUNTY -2005 TO 2030........................................... 8
TABLE III:NEW A.M. PEAK HOUR TRIPS INWEST CONTRA COSTA COUNTY -2005 TO 2030 .................................. 9
TABLE I V: STMP PROJECTS AND A V AILABLE FUNDING ......................................................................................   I 0
TABLE V: DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS RECEIVED TO DATE .................................................................................................16
TABLE VI: 2005 COST PER TRIP ESTIMATE........................................................................................................................17
TABLE VII: 2005 RECOMMENDED STMP RATES AND FEES AND FEES ................................................................... 18

8A-20



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 4 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

Introduction

This analysis provides the technical basis for establ ishing the required nexus between anticipated
future development in West Contra Costa County and the need for certain local and regional
transportation faci l ities. The specific tasks performed in preparing this analysis and their results are
summarized below. The West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee's (WCCTAC)
Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) was established in 1997. This is the first
update of the STMP program to ensure that the various aspects of the program reflect current
conditions. For the 2005 STMP u pdate, WCCTAC retained a team led by TJKM Transportation
Consu ltants to update technical aspects of the program.

The 2005 STMP update includes an updated project l ist with cost estimates for all improvement 
projects to be potentially funded by STMP fees.

This report presents the resu lts of the efforts of the project team to u pdate the WCCTAC STMP. This
update effort involved the major tasks described below.

I . The amount of new development that wi ll occur in the WCCTAC area between 2005 and
2030 was determined.

2. A new estimate was prepared of the trip generation that wi ll result from development of the
expected future land uses within the WCCTAC area. Trip generation rates from the Institute
of Transportation Engineers (ITE) pu bl ication Trip Generation were utilized.

3. Future deficiencies on the transportation network were determined based on findings of the
staff of WCCTAC, its mem ber agencies, and the consu ltant team.

4. A l ist of projects needed to accom modate future traffic was determined.

5. Updated traffic improvement project cost estimates were prepared which reflect the latest
concept designs for the projects and the latest completion status of the various projects.

6. An u pdated cost per trip was calculated along with the correspond ing updated STMP
schedule of fees.

7. A reasonable relationshi p between the impacts of the new growth and the fees proposed in the
STMP was ascertained. State law requires that there must be a rough ly proportional benefit
from the proposed fees to the projects supplying the funds.

Summary

Cltapter 2 -Expected Growth In Households, Employment and Peak Hour Trips

According to A BAG's Projections 2003, the overall estimated growth in the WCCTAC area is
estimated at I 7,910 households (a 20.3 percent increase in 25 years) and 28,81 0jobs (an increase of
over 35 percent). Using standard avai lable trip generation rates, the total increase in peak hour trips
in the a.m. period is expected to be 28,571 . Richmond and Hercu les account for over 75 percent of
the new trips.

8A-21



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 5 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

Ch"pter3-Project List "ndPriorities

The recom mended l ist of new transportation improvements to serve the WCCTAC area was
developed by the  WCCTAC Tech n ical Advisory Com m ittee and the consu ltants.  The WCCTAC
Board reviewed a prel im inary l ist of projects  in A ugust 2004. The recommend l ist of new projects  is
shown below.  Costs and detai ls of the ind ividual projects are described in Chapter 3 of th is report.

I . R ichmond l ntermodal Station
2. I nterchanges on 1-80 at San Pablo Dam Road and at Central and on Highway 4 at W il low

Aven ue
3. Capitol Corridor capital and/or operational i mprovements
4. Ferry service from Richmond and/or Hercu les/Rodeo
5. BART access and/or parki ng im provements
6. Bay Trai l Gap Closu re
7. San Pabl o Dam Road improvements i n downtown  El Sobrante
8. San Pablo Aven ue Corridor I m provements
9. N. Rich mond road connection project
10. Hercu les Transit Center relocation
1 1. Del Norte Area Transit Oriented Development project (pu bl ic improvements)

The 1 1 projects have a total cost of $371 m i l l ion. Of th is amou nt, approximately $273 m i ll ion is
anticipated to be funded by other sources or does not satisfy nexus req u i rements, leaving $98 m i l l ion
for fund ing by the u pdated  2005 STMP.

Chapter 4 -STMP Previous Collections "ndPotential Yield From 2005 Update

The existing STMP was adopted i n 1997. A total of near $2.942 m i ll ion has been col lected to date, or
about $39,200 per month.  Most of the funds collected have been spent on the Richmond lntermodal
project and the Highway 4 West Project. The  1997 Nexus Analysis ind icated that $24.5 m i l l ion cou ld
be col lected for the next 13 years if the maxim u m fee amounts were adopted, but WCCTAC adopted
a fee that was lower by approximately 80 percent so that $5. l m i l l ion was the expected yield. The
adopted rates amou nt to about $440 per peak hou r trip, instead of the $2, 100 ind icated by the nexus
study.  I f these same rates were appl ied to the expected growth in the next 25 years, the yield wou ld
be $12.6 m il l ion with the lower rates and $60.0 mi ll ion with the fu ll rates.

Chapter 5 -Program Costs "ndFee Calculation

I n u pdati ng the cost per tri p, the total costs of al l proposed projects were determ ined and the outside
fund ing and non-el igible costs were subtracted to yield a total amou nt to be i ncl uded i n the program.
The program amou nt is $ I 01 ,043,000, and when d ivided by the amou nt of peak hour trips generated
by the new development, 28,81 0, the 2005 STMP cost per trip is $3,507 if al l projects  were to be
fu l ly funded. Th is figu re is about 67 percent more than the $2, I 00 cost per trip determ ined i n 1 997.
A rate schedu le is recom mended to fu nd th is fu ll amou nt. However, WCCTAC may choose to
provide on ly partial fundi ng of the project  l ist. I n 1 997, the final fees were set to cover about 20
percent of the recommended program.

Chapter 6 -Nexus Findings

Ca l ifornia legislation req u ires that charges on new developments bear a reasonable relat ionsh i p to the
needs created by, and the benefits accru ing to that development. Cal iforn ia courts have  long used t hat
reasonableness standard or nex us to test to eva l uate the consti t utionality of exactions. i ncl ud ing

8A-22



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 6 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

development fees. Based on the analysis included in the body of this report, it can be concluded that
the future development and the need for their associated improvements meet or exceed the basic
req uirements set forth in Government Code sections beginning with 66000 to govern development
fees.

Of the $371 million worth of needed improvements identified in this analysis, over $121 million in
outside fund ing sources have been identified. These outside sources primarily include Contra Costa
County Measure J, which is the extension of the one-half percent sales tax levied for transportation
improvements. Measure J, which is intended to fund improvements which will correct both existing
and future deficiencies, is a partner to the STMP extension, which by law must only fund future
transportation deficiencies associated with new development. Measure J was approved by Contra
Costa County voters in the general election on Novem ber 2, 2004. Of the total deficiencies identified
in the 1 1 proposed STMP projects, only about 27 percent of the funding comes from the STMP. Over
$150 million worth of costs of the 1 1 projects fails to satisfy the nexus req uirements and was not
included in the program.

The methodology of this report ensured that only the portion of the projects included in the STMP
project list is necessitated by the growth in traffic between 2005 cond itions and 2030 conditions.
Thus, there is a reasonable relationship between the proposed use of the STMP and the proposed land
use development projects on which the fee will be imposed. In the same manner there is a reasonable 
relationship between the need for facil ities included in the STMP and the proposed land use
development projects.

8A-23



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 7 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 2. EXPECTED GROWTH IN HOUSEHOLDS, EMPLOMENT AND
PEAK HOUR TRIPS IN THE WCCTAC AREA

Household Growth
A BAG's Projections 2003 was used to detenni ne the resident ial and employment growt h i n the West
County area between 2005 and 2030. The growth i n households for the WCCTAC area is shown i n
Table I.

The overal I residential growth for the area is esti mated at 17,910 households, representi ng a 20.3
percent i ncrease for the 25 year period. Rich mond is projected to have about 61 percent of the
resident ial growth, and Hercu les is antic i pated to have nearly 19 percent of the growth. Hercu les w i l l
be the fastest growi ng area, with a 50 percent i ncrease i n households i n the 25-year period.

TABLEI:HOUSEHOLD GROWTH IN WEST CONTRA COSTA COUNTY -2005 TO 2030

Note: Forecasts are for each city's Sphere of Influence (SOI) except for the Rodeo-Crockett unincorporated area.
Kensington is included in the El Genito SOI, Montalvin Manor and Tara Hills are in the Pinole SOI, N.
Richmond and El Sobrante are in the Richmond SOI, and Rollingwood is in the San Pablo SOI.

Source: ABAG Projections 2003

Employment Growth
Employment is expected to grow more rapid ly than residential development. A growth of over 35
percent is forecast  by A BAG for the WCCTAC area, representi ng an actual job growth of nearly
29,000 positions. Rich mond w i l l accou nt for 57 percent of the job growth, with Hercu les accou nt i ng
for about 18 percent.  Hercu les job growth rates are nearly 1 50 percent, w h i le El Cerrito, Pi nole and
R ich mond are expected to register growth of around 30 percent.  The Crockett-Rodeo u ni ncorporated
area is expected to grow by nearly 60 percent. Table II sum marizes the anticipated employment
growth in the WCCTAC area.

 Households

2005 2030 Growth Shareof 
Growth l%J

Rate of
Growth f%J

El Cerrito 13,160 13,650 490 2.7 3.7
Hercules 6,860 10,270 3,410 19.0 49.7
Pinole 10,700 12,500 1,800 10.1 16.8

Richmond 43,640 54,590 10,950 61.1 25.1
Rodeo-Crockett 4,520 4,680 160 0.9 13.3

San Pablo 9,170 10,270 1,100 6.2 3.5
Totals 88 050  105960 17.910 100.0 20.3

8A-24



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 8 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

TABLE: II:EMPLO\\IENTGROWTHINWESTCONTRACOSTACOl:NTY-2005TO2030

Note: Forecasts are for each city's Sphere of Influence except for the Rodeo-Crockett umncorporated area. See
Table I note for details.

Source: ABAG Projections 2003

The anticipated growth in households and employment in the WCCTAC area wi l l resu lt in new peak
hour trips on the transportation network. These are described i n the next section.

Trip Generation

In order to detennine the amount of traffic that is associated with the expected new development in
the west county area, TJ KM appl ied trip generation rates to the components of the new growt h.

As in the original STMP, the 2005 update rel ies on the a.m. peak hour commute period as the pri mary
analysis period. The a.m. peak hour period is used in order to not overburden the appl ication of the
traffic fees on retai l development. Whi le residential uses and most employment based land uses such
as offices and business parks have simi lar a.m. and p.m. peak hour trip rates, retai l uses typica l ly are
three to four times as heavy in the p.m. period as the a.m. period. Use of the a.m. rates for al l uses
tends to spread the fee appl ication more un ifonn ly.

As noted above, there is expected to be a total of 1 7,910 new households in the WCCTAC area over a
25-year period. Since some of these households wi l l be in mu ltiple fami ly dwel l ing un its and some
wi ll be in single-fami ly dwel l ing units, TJKM assumed an average of the trip generation rates for the
two residential land use types. The average a.m. trip rate of 0.63 trips per dwel l ing un it was appl ied
to the total n umber of households to yield a total of 1 1 ,285 new residentia l-based trips.

For non-residential uses, a trip rate that is based on numbers of employees, and is representative of
various uses such as offices, business parks, man ufacturi ng and retai l uses in the a.m. period, was
selected. The rate selected was 0.60 trips per employee. When that num ber is appl ied to the 28,81 0
growth in employment over the 25-year period, the n umber of new a.m. peak hour trips generated by
these uses totals 1 7,286 trips.

These figures are shown in Table III. The table shows the tota l of the new a.m. trips from both
residential and non-residential growth, 28,571 , and also shows the amount of the new trips that are
a l located to each of the WCCTAC agenc ies. Richmond growth is expected to generate about 59
percent of the new trips, Hercu les about 1 8 percent and the other areas general ly between about 5 and
I0 percent. The contributions of other agencies are shown in the table below.

 Employment

2005 2030 Growth Shareof 
Growth f%J

Rate of
Growth (%}

El Cerrito 8,170 10,300 2,130 7.4 26.1

Hercules 3,430 8,490 5,060 17.6 147.5

Pinole 6,110 7,920 1,810 6.3 29.6

Richmond 52,390 68.750 16,360 56.8 31.2

Rodeo-Crockett 3,590 5.730 2,140 7.4 59.6

San Pablo 8.460 9,770 1,310 4.5 15.5
Totals 82,150 110960 28 810 100.0 35.1

8A-25



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 9 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

T\BLE Ill: NEW A.M. PE.\K HOl'R TRIPS IN WEST CO!'liTRA COSTA COlil'liTY-2005 TO 2030

Source: TJKM
100.0

'Growth inhouseholds from Table 1multiplied by 0.63, the average a.m. peak hour trip rate for
single-family andmu/ti.family dwellingunits. TheInstituteof TransportationEngineers TripGeneration, 2003Edition, is the
source of this information.
2Growth in employment from Table2multiplied by 0.60, a representative a.m. peak hour trip rate
for employment uses.

The amount of new trips is used in the calculation of the 2005 STMP update cost per a.m. peak hour
trip, as described in subsequent chapters of this report.

 NewPeak Hour Trips Share of
Total

%
From

Households1
From

Em1Jlovmenfl
Total
Trios

El Cerrito 309 1,278 1,587 5.6
Hercules 2,149 3,036 5,185 18.1
Pinole 1,134 1,086 2,220 7.8
Richmond 6,899 9,816 16,715 58.5
Rodeo-Crockett 101 1,284 1,385 4.8
San Pablo 693 786 1,479 5.2

 Totals 11,285  17,286 28 571   

8A-26



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 1 0 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 3. SELECTION AND COST OF PROJECTS

The recommended l ist of projects to be included in the u pdated STM P is shown in Table IV below.
The projects are described in greater detai l in the remain ing portions of this chapter.

T.\BLE IV: STMP PROJECTS A D A\'.\ILABLE fl;lliDING

Project Tota/ Cost Measure J Other
Funds

Unfunded 
Amount

Recommended
  STMP

1. Richmond lntermodal station

2. Interchanges on 1-80 at San 
Pablo Dam Roadand at
Central andon Highway 4 at
Willow Avenue.

3. Capital Corridor 
Improvements

4. Ferry service from Richmond
and/or Hercules/Rodeo

5. BART access and/or parking
improvements

6. Bay Trail Gap Closure

7. San PabloDam Road
improvements in downtown El
Sobrante

8. San Pablo Avenue Corridor
Improvements

9. N. Richmond road connection
project

10. Hercules Transit Center
relocation

11. DelNorteAreaTOD

$36,000,000

46,200,000

48,200,000

91,000,000

92,100,000

5,490,000

6,900,000

6,000,000

7,950,000

6,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

7,500,000

45,000,000

15,000,000

$21,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000

14,280,000

3,000,000

16,200,000

37,700,000 13,255,000

 
46,000,000 12,650,000

 
77,100,000 25,330,000

348,000 5,142,000 1,510,000

6,900,000 1,900,000

6,000,000 1,650,000

7,950,000 4,000,000

6,000,000 1,650,000

25,000,000 6,875,000

STMP Totals $370840000 $97500000 $24 348 000 $248 992.000 $98.100.000

Project Descri ptions

I. Richmond lntermod"ISt(J/ion

The R ich mond Intermodal Stationff ransit V i llage is located in downtown R ichmond. Other pu bl ic
improvements (e.g. the center  platfonn) have already been completed using state/federa l/loca l funds
(approx imately $22,000,000).  The transit vil lage is u nder construction and the housi ng on the west
side is more than ha lfway complete. Fu nd ing is needed to complete the follow ing pu bl ic

8A-27



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page II of 20
May 5,2006

 

improvements:  parki ng garage, station bu i ld ing, the transit center, and pu bl ic i mprovements on the
east side of the station.

Cost: $36,000,000

Other  Potential  Fund i n g Sou rce(s): Private  developer  contributions, state/federal transportation 
funds and Measu re J.

Project Nexus Discussion:  The total cost of th is project is $36 m i l l ion, of wh ich approximately $21
m i ll ion is funded by various sources. Although in the WCCTAC area on ly 27.5 percent of future
traffic (see Chapter 6 for a detai led find ing) is based on 25-year growth, in this case the project was
previously justified (in 1997) based mai n ly on future deficiencies. However, on ly an estimated 40
percent of the project is justified  by virtue of serving transportation demands of future growth.  Thus,
$15 m i ll ion of the total cost of $36 m i ll ion is included in the STM P.

STM P Fu ndi ng:  $15,000,000

2. Interchanges on l-80 at San Pablo Dam Road and Central Avenue and onHighway 4 at Willow

1-80 I San Pablo Dam Road -Upgrade and im prove the interchange includ ing provisions for
bicycl ists and pedestrians.  The project wi ll enhance operations and veh icu lar, bicycle, pedestrian
safety in the vicin ity of the interchange.

Cost: $16.7 mi ll ion

1-80 I Central Avenue -Modify and real ign the interchange and ramp at Central Avenue.

Cost: $22.5 million

I-80/SR4 Interchange at Willow Avenue-Relocate and real ign ramps at Willow Avenue to
meet current standards for improved local access and freeway movements.

Cost: $3.0 m i llion to $7.0 m ill ion

Potential  fu ndin g source(s): Measu re J ($30 m i llion); City of Hercu les Redevelopment Agency;
private developer contributions; state/federal transportation  funds.

Project   Nexus  Discussion:  I m provements to the three interchanges have an estimated total cost of
$46,200,000.  However, two of the interchanges -the 1-80 interchanges with San Pablo Dam Road
and with Central Aven ue - are currently deficient  and  on ly 27.5 percent  (25-year traffic growth
within the WCCTAC area) of their improvement costs can be assigned to the STMP. On the other
hand, the need for the Willow Avenue interchange improvements is based in large part on future
growth in the Hercu les area.  In th is case, 50 percent of the costs are assigned to the STMP. The
breakdown of the $14.28 m i ll ion STMP assignment is $ I 0.78 m i ll ion for the two 1-80 i nterchanges
and $3.5 m i ll ion for the Willow Aven ue interchange.

STMP Fu ndi ng:   $ I 4,280.000

8A-28



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 12 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

3. Capitol Corridor

Hercules Passenger Rai l Station - Hercules passenger rai l station (incl ud ing parki ng, station platform,
signage and plazas, rai l i m provements, etc.). Capital improvements along the corridor in West Contra
Costa (track improvements, drainage, fencing, safety improvements, etc.)
Cost: $28.2 mi llion for Hercules passenger rai l station and $20 mi llion for capital i mprovements.

Potential Fund ing Sources: Measure J ($7.5 mi llion for the station); $3 mi ll ion TCRP funds (station);
state/federal transportation funds.

Project Nexus Discussion: This project is among those whose justification is related to existing
cond itions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. Accord i ngly, 25-year traffic
growth i ncrease withi n the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been applied to the total project cost of
$48.2 mi llion to result in a STMP allocation of $13.3 mi ll ion.

STMP Fu nding: $13,255,000

4. Ferry Service to San Francisco from Richmond and/or Hercules/Rodeo

New ferry service to San Francisco from Richmond and/or Hercules/Rodeo utilizi ng high-speed 
vessels. Funds will be used for capital improvements such as vehicles, landside improvements,
parki ng l ighting, transit feeder service, signage, etc. Both ferry services wi ll be in close proxi mity to
existing and future residential and commercial projects on West County's shorel ines.

Cost: $23 mi llion for Richmond (vessels - $12 mi ll ion; term inal - $!! mi ll ion); $23 mi llion for
Hercules/Rodeo (vessels - $12 million; termi nal - $1 1 mi llion). Total - $46 mi llion.

Other Potential Fundi ng Sources: Measure J ($45 mi llion for operations); $I bridge toll; state/federal
transportation funds; fare box.

Project Nexus Discussion: This project is among those whose justification is related to existing
cond itions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. It is assumed that a significant
portion of future ferry ridershi p wi II come from existing travelers. Accordi ngly, 25-year traffic
growth increase withi n the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been applied to the total project cost of
$46 mi llion to result in a STMP allocation of $12.65 million.

STMP Funding:  $12,650,000

5. BART Access and I or Parking Improvements

As a component of BA RT's Smart Growth Program, funds would be used for parking, aesthetic
and/or access improvements, station capacity improvements, sidewal ks, l ighting/restroom
renovations, bicycle storage, expanded automatic fare collection equipment, etc. in the West County
area (El Cerrito Plaza, El Cerrito Del Norte, and/or Richmond).

Cost: $92.1 mi llion for the West County area.

Other Potential Funding Sources: Measure J ($15 million); state/federa l t ransportation funds.

8A-29



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 13 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

Pro ject  Nexus  Discussion:  This project is among those whose justification  is related to existing
conditions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth.  Accordingly, 25-year traffic
growth increase with in the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been appl ied to the total WCCTAC area
project cost of $92. I m i ll ion to resu lt i n a STMP allocat ion of $25.33 mi ll ion.

STMP Fundi ng: $25,330,000

6. Bay Trail Gap Closure

Close gaps i n the Bay Trai l in West Contra Costa County, incl ud i ng, but not l im ited to the followi ng:
( I ) the one-m i le gap along the R ich mond Parkway between Pen nsyl vania and Gertrude Aven ues; (2)
the 1 .8 m i le gap north of Freethy to Payne Drive i n Rich mond; (3) the two-m i le gap from Payne
Drive to Cypress Aven ue i n Rich mond; (4) the one-mi le gap from Pi nole Shores to Rai lroad A ven ue
in Pinole; and (5) the 1 .8 m i le gap from Rai lroad Aven ue to Parker Aven ue i n Hercu les.

Cost:  $5.49 mi llion

Other Potential Fund ing Sources: EBRPD sources, private developers, other (to be determi ned).

Project  Nexus  Discussion:  This project is among those whose justification  is related to existing
conditions and deficiencies as well as needs  caused by future growth.  Accordingly, 25-year  traffic
growth i ncrease withi n the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been appl ied to the total WCCTAC area
project cost of $5.49 m i ll ion to resu lt in a STMP allocat ion of $1 .5 I m i ll ion.

STMP Fu ndi n g: $1,5 10,000

7. San Pablo Dam Road Improvements inDowntown El Sobrante

Revital ization of the downtown business district in El Sobrante i ncl ud ing traffic calm i ng, add itional
signals, pedestrian i mprovements, tum lanes, etc. that are ident ified i n the Downtown El Sobrante
Transportation and Land Use Plan (and subseq uent  documents).

Cost: $6.9 m i llion

Potent ial fund in g source(s): Measu re J, County funds, other state and federal transportation funds.

Project Nexus Discussion: Th is project is among those whose justification is related to existin g
cond itions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. Accord ingly, 25-year traffic
growth i ncrease with i n the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been appl ied to the total WCCTAC area
project cost of $6.9 m i ll ion to resu lt i n a STMP allocation of $1 .9 m i ll ion.

STMP Fu nd i ng: $1 ,900,000

8. San Pablo Avenue Corridor Improvements

Transportation for L ivable Com m un it ies i nfrastructure i m provements  on San Pablo A ven ue through
West Contra Costa County and with i n a half-mi le wal king d istance of San Pablo A ven ue i n either

8A-30



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 14 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

direction. A lso incl udes im provements as part of the San Pablo Aven ue SMART Corridor project
that is currently underway in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties on San Pablo Aven ue.

Cost: $6 mi llion

Potential fundi ng source(s): Measu re J, Transportation for Livable Comm unities, state and federal
transportation funds.

Project Nexus Discussion: This project is among those whose justification is related to existi ng
conditions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. Accord ingly, 25-year traffic
growth i ncrease with in the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been applied to the total WCCTAC area
project cost of $6,000,000 to resu lt in a STMP allocation of $1 .65 mi llion.

STM P Fu ndi ng: $1,650,000

9. North Richmond Road Connection Project

Extend Seventh Street north ward approxi mately 0.1 mi les to connect to an eastward extension of
Pittsburg Avenue. Pittsburg Aven ue wou ld be extended eastward approxi mately 0.3 mi les to connect
to the Seventh Street extension. The extension wi ll faci litate truck and veh icle traffic passing through
North Richmond from the Richmond Parkway.

Cost: $7.95 mi llion

Potential fundi ng source(s): Measu re J, state and federal transportation funds, County redevelopment
funds, County funds.

Project Nexus Discussion: This project is among those whose justification is related to existi ng
cond itions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. However, th is project mainly
aims to serve growth in truck traffic resu lting from new development i n the North Richmond area. It
is assumed that at least one-half of the traffic on th is project wi ll relate to new development in the
area. The STMP assignment is 50 percent of the total cost, or $4 mi llion.

STMP Funding: $4.0 mi llion

I 0. Hercules Transit Center

Relocate and expand the Hercu les Transit Center on the east side of High way 4 to provide improved
access to/from High way 4 and improved local circu lation.

Cost: $6 mi llion

Potential funding source(s): Private developer contributions; Hercu les Redevelopment Agency funds;
state and federal transportation funds.

Project Nexus Discussion: This project is among those whose justification is related to existi ng
cond itions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. Accord ingly, 25-year traffic
growth i ncrease with in the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been applied to the total WCCTAC area
project cost of $6.0 mi ll ion to resu lt in a STM P allocation of $l.65 million.

STM P Fu ndi ng: $ l .650,000

8A-31



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 15 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

11. Del Norte Area Transit Oriented Development project (public improvements)

Planni ng, engineering, environmental stud ies, and construction of the publ ic transportation-related
improvements at the El Cerrito Del Norte BART station's Transit Oriented Development project.
Funding wi ll provide im provements including, but not l im ited to: parking facilities; bicycle,
pedestrian, and/or bus transit access i mprovements; signage; l ighting; im provements to station access
or station waiti ng areas; ADA im provements; improvements to adjacent streets, street crossings, or
signals; and/or Oh lone Greenway i mprovements.

Cost: $25 million

Potential funding sources: Private developer contributions; state and federal transportation funds (for
example, Transportation for Livable Communities funds); Measure J funds.

Project Nexus Descri ption: This project is among those whose justification is related to existing
conditions and deficiencies as well as needs caused by future growth. Accord ingly, the 25-year
traffic growth increase with in the WCCTAC area, 27.5 percent, has been appl ied to the total project
cost of $25 mill ion to resu lt in a STMP allocation of $6.875 mill ion.

STMP Fund ing: $6,875,000

8A-32



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 16 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 4. STMP PREVIOUS COLLECTIONS AND 2005 UPDATE POTENTIAL
FEE REVENUES

Collections To Date

The STMP was approved in 1997 and the first funds were received i n A pri l of 1998. Between  Apri l
of 1998 and Ju ly of 2004 a total of $2,942,031 .39 has been collected, including $97,255.90 in
interest.  For th is 75-month period, the average month ly recei pts have been approxi mately  $39,200.

During th is period, the funds were allocated as shown in Table V.

TABLE V: DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS RECEIVED TO DATE

Source: CCTA

If this month ly rate of receipts wou ld continue for a 20-year period, the total recei pts wou ld be over
$9.4 million in current dollars, not including any in terest. This is one measu re of the amount of funds
that cou ld be received over a 25 year period  begi nni ng i n 2005 if the same fees wou ld prevai l and the
same rate of development were to contin ue.

The Nexus Analysis prepared in 1997 indicated that the fees established at that time should yield
about $5.1 mi llion over 13 years ( 1997 to 2010). This calcu lates to an average of about $33,000 per
month, so the actual recei pts of about $39,200 per month, includ ing interest, are conservatively close
to the origi nal estimates.

It shou ld be noted that the 1997 Nexus Analysis showed that WCCTAC cou ld legally establish fees
whose reven ues wou ld total $24.5 mi llion. However, at the time it was felt that it was appropriate to
reduce the financial bu rden on both com mercial and residential development. Single-fam ily
residential fees were established at $700 per u nit instead of the allowable $2,345. Mu lti-fami ly
residential fees were reduced from $1,002 to $560. Retail, office and industrial fees were established
at $0.20 per square foot, instead of allowable rates ranging from $1 .37 to $2.88 per square foot of
development.

Potential Fee Reven ues From 2005 Update

As noted above, the 1 997 Nexus Analysis justified a total cost of $24.5 m i llion in funds to be paid by
the fee. This amou nts to a rate of about $2, 100 per peak hou r trip.  However, the amount of fee
actually enacted amounted to about $440 per peak hou r tri p, or about 20 percent of the maximu m
amount.  As noted in Table 111, there is an estimated 28,571 a.m. peak hour tri ps associated with the
expected growth in development in the 25-year period beginn ing in 2005.  Using the 1997 rates, this
amount of trips wou ld accou nt for $12.6 m i llion at the reduced rate of $440 per trip over the 25-year
period or $60.0 m i llion at the fu ll rate of $2, I00 per peak hou r tri p.

Recom mendations for the tees associated w ith the 2005 STM P update are descri bed in the next
chapter.

Project Allocation Percent Payment Balance
Richmond lntermodal 
Highway 4 West
ElCerritoPlazaBARTParking
WCCTACAdministration
CCTA Administration

$ 232,697.54
$ 2,393,722.86
$ 232,697.54
$ 38,782.92
$ 44,130.47

7.91
81.36
7.91
1.32
1.50

$ 135,391.31
$ 2,100,435.39
$ 0
$ 34,137.94
$ 43,576.70

$ 97,306.23
$ 293,287.47
$ 232,697.54
$ 4,644.98
$ 553.77

Total $ 2,942,031.34 100.00 $ 2,313,541.34 $ 628,490.00

8A-33



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 17 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 5. PROGRAM COSTS AND FEE CALCULATION

Updated Cost per Trip Estimate

Table VI presents a summary of the STMP improvement project costs, req uired adjustments to
account for past STMP activities, the projected future trips to be added by new development, and the
resulti ng estimated STMP improvement cost per trip. The total cost of the STMP projects to be
included is $370,840,000. Adjustments to the fee are as follows:

• Outside Funding - $121 ,848,000: These are anticipated funds from outside sources that wi ll
offset the costs of projects in the STMP. See Table IV for details.

• Exceeds Nexus - $150,892,000: These are funds that exceed the nexus test described in
Chapter 3 and 6.

These adjustments are appl ied to the fee calculation as shown in Table VI.  The updated fee
calculation is based on trip generation estimates in Table 3 and the cost estimates of the STMP
improvement projects presented in Table IV. The updated cost per trip is $3,507, using a total STMP
project cost of $101 ,043,000 and a total of 28,81 0 new a.m. peak hour trips. The STMP improvement
projects cost and the STMP portion of these costs as well as the calculated new STMP cost per trip
are shown in Table VI.

Table VII presents the new STMP schedule of fees. The land use categories in this fee schedule
reflect the current situation with the STMP.

TABLE VI: 2005 COST PER TRIP ESTIMATE:

STMP Improvement Projects STMPPortionof
1997 Costs

Actual STMP
FeeAdopted

In 1997

STMP Portion
of

2005 Costs

Change from
1997 STMP

All Projects $ 64,267,500 -- $ 370,840,000 + $ 306,572,500
Subtotal $ 64,267,500 .. $ 370,840,000 + $ 306,572,500

Outside Funding $ 39,841,000 -- $ 121,848,000 + $ 82,007,000
Exceeds Nexus - -- $150,892,000 + $150,892,000
Net Improvement Costs $ 24,426,500 $ 5,100,000 $ 98,100,000 + $ 73,673,500
Plus Administrative Costs (3%) (Included in total) -- $ 2,943,000 ..

Total STMP Funding $ 24,426,500 $ 5,100,000 $ 101,043,000 + $ 76,616,500

Total Peak Hour TripsAdded by
New Development 11,589 11,589 28,810 + 17,223

STMPCostPerTrip $ 2,100 $440 $ 3,507 +$ 1,407

8A-34



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 18 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

TABLE VII:2005 RECO\IME"IDED STMP RAn:sA:\D FEESAND FEES

Land Uses Peak Hour
Trip Rates

Units of
Use

2005
Fee Rates•

(full funding)

1997 Fee Rates
(full funding)

1997Fee Rates
as Adopted

Sinqle-family Residential 0.74 DU $2595 $ 1,554 $700
Multi-family Residential 0.47 DU $1,648 $987 $560

Senior Housing 0.21 DU $701 - -
Hotel 0.56 Room $1,964 - -
Retail 0.52 KSF $1.82 sf $0.34 $0.20

Office 1.00 KSF $3.51 sf $ 2.79 $0.20

Industrial 0.70 KSF $2.45 sf $ 1.89 $0.20

Storage facility 0.15 KSF $0.53 sf - -

Church 0.45 KSF $1.58 sf - -

Hospital 1.20 KSF $4.21 sf - -

OU= Dwelling Unit; sf =square foot
KSF =ThousandSquareFeet
Note: Based on $3,507 per peak hour trip

Other Factors In STMP Update
Trip Ad justments The peak hou r trip rate for the retail category was adjusted to accou nt for trip
lengths as described in the 1997 study. The base a.m. rate for retail was red uced by 50 percent to
accou nt for reduced trip lengths as compared with non-retai l uses. Trip rates for the office category
were reduced from 1 .33 trips per thousand square feet (kst) to 1 .00 trips per ksf; ind ustrial trip rates
were reduced from 0.90 to 0.70.

Exempt Development In the 1997 study, it was found that sl ightly more than I 0 percent of the land
use depicted as futu re growth al ready had some level of land use entitlements and wou ld be exempt
from the STMP payments. These exemptions were either because a) a vested tentative map had been
issued, or b) a development agreement had been completed which specifically excludes assessment of
any add itional fees. It wi ll contin ue to be appropriate for fees to be waived in these cases, although it
is unl ikely that development agreements have been approved subseq uent to 1997 that el iminate
participation in WCCTAC STMP fees.

Special Cases As was the case in 1997, it remains appropriate for developers to req uest a special
traffic study if it is felt that thei r particu lar land use proposal either does not fit into one of the land
use categories or if the particu lar development may generate less traffic than the category provides.
The methodology for conducting such a study shall be approved by the WCCTAC upon
recommendation of the WCCTAC-TAC. The appropriate govern i ng/permitti ng agency shall be
responsi ble for reviewing and approving the ind ividual traffic studies.

Establ ishment of Final WCCTAC STMP Fee  WCCTAC may decide, as it d id i n 1997, not to
levy the fu ll fee that has been establ ished as a part of th is study. If so, the resu lts wi ll be reflected i n
an adjustment to this study.

8A-35



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 19 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 6. NEXUS FINDINGS

Forecasts of future traffic volumes were made to provide the data needed to establ ish the reasonable
connection between new development's travel demand and the need for and costs of the proposed
projects with in the WCCTAC area. ABAG's Project ions 2003 was used to determ ine the amount of
growth in land use in the west county area between 2005 and 2030. Subseq uent ly, traffic usage
related to the growth was calculated as descri bed in Chapter 2.

Using the traffic generation results and the est imated project costs, the portion of the estimated
project costs that can reasonably be connected with the need generated by projected new development
has been calcu lated.

The fol lowing process was used to establ ished the amount of a project that can attributed to growth
and thereby be el igible for STMP fund ing:

Amount ofhouseholds in2005
Amount ofemployees in2005
Household trips in2005 = 88,050x 0.63*
Employment trips in2005 = 82,150x 060*
Total trips in 2005 = 55,472 +49,290
Growth intrips between 2005 and2030
Percentoftraffic relatedto25yeargrowth=28,810/104,762

*Triprates-seepage5fordetails

88,050 (from Table 1)
82,150 (fromTable2)
55,472
49,290
104,762
28,810 (from Table 3)
27.5%

Therefore, as noted in the Project Nexus Discussion in Chapter 3 for each of the 1 1 STMP projects, a
m in imu m of 27.5 percent of the cost of each project was assigned to the STMP, unless a lesser
amount of funds is necessary to fu lly fund the proposed project. In a few cases, a greater percentage 
was uti l ized when conditions d ictated.

It is noted that of the $371 m i l l ion worth of needed i mprovements ident ified in th is analysis, over
$121 million in outside fund ing sources have been ident ified. These outside sources primari ly
include proposed Contra Costa County Measure J, wh ich is the extension of the one-half percent sales
tax levied for transportation improvements. Measure J, which is intended to fund improvements
wh ich wi ll correct both existing and future deficiencies, is a partner to the STMP extension, wh ich by
law must on ly fund future transportation deficiencies associated with new development. Measu re J
was approved by Contra Costa County voters in the general elect ion on Novem ber 2, 2004. In
add ition, the project nexus analyses ind icated that $150,892,000 of the projects does not meet the
minimum nexus requirement. Thus, of the total deficiencies identified in the 1 1 proposed STMP
projects, only 27 percent of the fund ing comes from the STMP.

The methodology of th is report is to ensure that on ly the portion of the projects included in the STMP
project l ist is necessitated by the growth in traffic between 2005 conditions and 2030 cond itions.
Thus, there is a reasonable relationsh ip between the proposed use of the STMP and the proposed land
use development projects on wh ich the fee wi l l be imposed. fn the same manner there is a reasonable
relationshi p between the need for facil it ies included in the STMP and the proposed land use
development projects.

8A-36



2005 STMP Update for WCCTAC
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Page 20 of 20
May 5, 2006

 

CHAPTER 7. STUDY PARTICIPANTS

TJKM Transportation Consultants Personnel

Chris D. K inzel, P.E.
Brad Thornton
Dan Harrison
Evi Pagh

The Reed Group

Robert Reed

Project Engi neer
Project Engi neer
Project Planner
Word Processi ng/Production

Principal

Persons/Agencies Consulted/WCCTAC - TAC Members

Lisa Hammon, Managing Director
Brad Beck
Bruce Beyaert 
Aleida Chavez
Rich Davidson
John Greitzer
Deidre Heitman
Adele Ho
Bruce King
Nathan Landau
Steve Lawton
John MacKenzie
Brent Salmi

WCCTAC 
CCTA
Trai ls for Richmond Action Committee (TRAC)
WestCAT
City of Richmond
Contra  Costa County Commu n ity Development Department
BART
City of San Pablo
City of El Cerrito
AC Transit
City of Hercu les
Caltrans
Pinole

8A-37



 

2201 Broadway | Suite 400 | Oakland, CA 94612 | (510) 834-3200  
www.fehrandpeers.com 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: June 26, 2017 

To: Theresa Wallace, LSA 

From: Sam Tabibnia and Huma Husain, Fehr & Peers 

Subject: El Cerrito Mayfair Parcels – Preliminary Transportation Analysis  

OK17-0182 

Fehr & Peers conducted a preliminary transportation assessment for the proposed development, 

consisting of 223 residential units and 8.900 square feet of commercial space at 11600 and 11690 

San Pablo Avenue and 1925 Kearny Street in El Cerrito, California (project). The project is located in 

the San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan (SPASP) area, which was analyzed in an environmental impact 

report (EIR) certified in 2014.  

Based on our analysis, the proposed project is consistent with the SPASP EIR and would generate 

fewer AM and PM peak hour vehicle trips than the uses assumed for this site in the EIR. Thus, the 

proposed project would not result in significant impacts beyond the ones identified in the SPASP 

EIR, and no additional traffic impact analysis is needed for this project (final determination will be 

made by City of El Cerrito staff).  

Although not required to address CEQA impacts, we recommend the following to improve access 

and circulation for all travel modes for the project: 

1. Make fair share contribution towards the implementation of the multi-modal 
improvements identified by the SPASP.  One option may be payment of the City of El Cerrito 
Transportation Impact Fee (TIF), currently under development. 

2. Ensure that the project driveways on Kearney Street provide adequate sight distance 
between exiting vehicles and pedestrians on the adjacent sidewalk.  

3. Ensure that on-street parking and trees on either side of each project driveway on Kearney 
Street would not restrict sight distance for exiting vehicles by providing at least 10 feet of 
red curb on both sides of each driveway and ensuring that the tree canopies are higher 
than six feet from the ground.  

STMP Exhibit E - Mayfair Transportation Analysis

8A-38



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 2 of 9 

4. Consider implementing time-restricted parking (i.e., two-hour or four-hour limit) during 
weekday business hours on one or both sides of Kearney Street adjacent to the project site 
to promote parking turnover and availability for residential and commercial visitors to the 
project. 

The rest of this memorandum describes the project, estimates trip generation, and reviews the site 

plan’s access and circulation characteristics. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project is located in the SPASP area, at 11600 and 11690 San Pablo Avenue and 1925 Kearny 

Street. Together, these parcels are known as the Mayfair Block, and are bounded by Knott Avenue 

to the north, Kearney Street to the east, Cutting Boulevard and the El Cerrito del Norte BART station 

to the south, and San Pablo Avenue to the west. The site is currently used as a surface overflow 

parking lot.  

The proposed project would consist of 223 residential dwelling units and 8,900 square feet of 

commercial uses. The project proposes to develop the site with two apartment buildings, a market-

rate building on the south side of the project site with 156 units and an affordable housing building 

on the north side of the site with 67 below-market rate units. The project would provide 8,900 

square feet of commercial space along the San Pablo Avenue frontage of the market-rate building. 

The project would provide a total of 150 parking spaces. Vehicles would access the site through 

two full-access driveways on Kearney Street. The south driveway would provide access to 79 spaces 

in the lower level of the parking garage. The north driveway would provide access to 71 spaces on 

the ground-level of the garage. Five spaces on the ground-level would be dedicated for commercial 

uses. The residential parking would be unbundled from the apartment units, meaning that the 

spaces would be leased separately from the units.  

CONSISTENCY WITH SPASP EIR 

As previously mentioned, the project is located in the SPASP area, which was analyzed in a 2014 

EIR. The SPASP EIR assumed that the Mayfair project site would be developed as a mixed use 

development with 200 residential units and 18,000 square feet of commercial uses. The SPASP EIR 

also assumed several roadway improvements as part of the Specific Plan project. In the vicinity of 

the project, several vehicle roadway modifications were included near the Mayfair project site to 

improve circulation to/from the Del Norte BART Station and to accommodate bicycle facilities. 

These changes include: 

8A-39



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 3 of 9 

 Conversion of Cutting Boulevard east of San Pablo Avenue to two-way traffic 

 Elimination of the second left turn lane on northbound San Pablo Avenue at Cutting 

Boulevard and at southbound San Pablo Avenue at Hill 

 Elimination of the outside through lane on northbound San Pablo Avenue between Hill 

Street and Cutting Boulevard; provide a right-turn lane onto eastbound Cutting Boulevard 

 Elimination of the outside through lane on northbound San Pablo Avenue between Cutting 

Boulevard and Knott Avenue 

 Elimination of the right-turn pocket lane on southbound San Pablo Avenue at Cutting 

Boulevard 

 Providing bicycle lanes on San Pablo Avenue, Hill Street, and Cutting Boulevard. 

 Providing crosswalks on the north approach of the San Pablo Avenue/Knott Avenue 
intersection and the south approach of the San Pablo Avenue/Cutting Boulevard 
intersection 

The City of El Cerrito is currently in the process of refining the multimodal improvements identified 

in the SPASP and developing a Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) program to determine fair share 

payment by the development projects facilitated by the Specific Plan for these improvements.   

Recommendation 1: Make fair share contribution towards the implementation of the multi-
modal improvements identified by the SPASP.  One option may be payment of the City of El 
Cerrito Transportation Impact Fee (TIF), currently under development. 

Project Trip Generation 

Trip generation is the process of estimating the number of vehicles that would likely access the 

project site. Current accepted methodologies, such as the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 

Trip Generation methodology, are primarily based on data collected at single-use suburban sites.  

These defining characteristics limit their applicability to developments such as the proposed project, 

which is in a more walkable urban setting near frequent local and regional transit service.  Fehr & 

Peers adjusted the ITE-based estimates using the methodology used in the SPASP EIR to account 

for the project’s setting and proximity to frequent transit service.  In the SPASP EIR, the ITE-based 

trip generation estimate was adjusted by applying the MXD Tool, which accounts for the density, 

land use mix, roadway design, and transit characteristics of the project area and uses these to 

adjust the ITE trip generation rates.  

Table 1 presents the trip generation for the proposed project and compares the trips generated 

to the assumption in the SPASP EIR. Using the same trip generation methodology used in the 

8A-40



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 4 of 9 

SPASP EIR, it is estimated that the proposed project would generate about 67 AM peak-hour and 

106 PM peak-hour trips. The SPASP assumed 200 residential units and 18,000 square feet of 

commercial for the site, which would generate 68 AM peak-hour and 128 PM peak-hour trips. The 

proposed project would generate two percent fewer trips in the AM peak hour and 17 percent 

fewer trips in the PM peak hour than assumed in the SPASP EIR. Thus, the proposed project would 

not result in significant impacts beyond the ones identified in the SPASP EIR. 

TABLE 1: PROJECT TRIP GENERATION  

Land Use ITE Code Size1  Daily 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

In Out Total In Out Total 

PROPOSED PROJECT (A) 

Residential 
Mid-Rise Apartments 

(223)2 
223 DU 1,305 18 41 59 45 32 77 

Commercial Shopping Center (820)3 8.9 KSF 334 5 3 8 14 15 29 

Proposed Project (A) 1,639 23 44 67 59 47 106 

SAN PABLO AVENUE SPECIFIC PLAN ASSUMPTION (B) 

Residential 
Mid-Rise Apartments 

(223)2 
200 DU 1,170 16 37 53 40 29 69 

Commercial Shopping Center (820)3 18.0 KSF 676 9 6 15 28 31 59 

SPASP Assumption (B) 1,846 25 43 68 68 60 128 

Net Difference (C = A-B) -207 -2 1 -1 -9 -13 -22 

1. KSF = 1,000 square feet; DU = dwelling unit 
2. ITE Trip Generation (9th Edition) land use category 223 (mid-rise apartments), adjusted by 12 percent based on the SPASP EIR trip 

generation methodology. 
Daily Average Rate = 5.90 trips per DU 
AM Peak Hour Average Rate = 0.26 trips per DU (31% in, 69% out) 
PM Peak Hour Average Rate = 0.34 trips per DU (58% in, 42% out) 

3. ITE Trip Generation (9th Edition) land use category 820 (shopping center), adjusted by 12 percent based on the SPASP EIR trip 
generation methodology. 

Daily Average Rate = 37.60 trips per KSF 
AM Peak Hour Average Rate = 0.84 trips per KSF (62% in, 38% out) 
PM Peak Hour Average Rate = 3.26 trips per KSF (48% in, 52% out) 

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2017. 

  

8A-41



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 5 of 9 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 

This section evaluates access and circulation for all travel modes within the proposed site, based on 

the site plan dated April 26, 2017.  

Vehicle Access and On-Site Circulation 

Residents and visitors would access the site through two full access driveways on Kearney Street, 

the south one about 50 feet north of Cutting Boulevard and the north one about 200 feet north of 

Cutting Boulevard, opposite the BART parking lot driveway. The project would provide a total of 

150 parking spaces. The south driveway would provide access to 79 spaces in the lower level of the 

parking garage. The north driveway would provide access to 71 spaces on the ground-level. Five 

spaces on the ground-level would be dedicated for commercial uses, which this analysis assumes 

would be limited to employees only. Thus, no commercial customers or visitors are expected to use 

the project parking garage.  

Project Driveway Sight Distance 

The two driveways on Kearney Street may not provide adequate sight distance between vehicles 

exiting the driveway and pedestrians on the adjacent sidewalk. Additionally, vehicles parked on 

each side of either driveway may block sight distance between vehicles exiting the driveway and 

vehicles on Kearney Street. Trees planted near the driveways may also affect visibility of exiting 

vehicles if the tree canopy is lower than six feet from the ground.  

Recommendation 2: Ensure that the project driveways on Kearney Street would provide 

adequate sight distance between exiting vehicles and pedestrians on the adjacent sidewalk. 

(Adequate sight distance is defined as a clear line-of-sight between a motorist ten feet back 

from the sidewalk and a pedestrian ten feet away on each sides of the driveway).  

Recommendation 3: Ensure that on-street parking and trees on either side of each project 

driveway on Kearney Street would not restrict sight distance for exiting vehicles by 

providing at least 10 feet of red curb on both sides of each driveway and ensuring that the 

tree canopies are higher than six feet from the ground.  

Bicycle Parking, Access and On-Site Circulation 

Section 2.05.07.04 of the SPASP Form-Based Code requires bicycle parking for residential and 

commercial uses, as shown in Table 2.  The project would consist of 223 residential units and 8,900 

8A-42



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 6 of 9 

square feet of commercial space, requiring 28 short-term bicycle parking spaces and 336 long-term 

bicycle parking spaces. The project would provide 46 short-term bicycle parking spaces in front of 

the retail space on San Pablo Avenue. The project would also provide 348 long-term spaces, 112 in 

a bicycle room on the ground floor of the affordable housing building and the remaining located 

in bicycle rooms on each floor of the market-rate building, exceeding City requirements. 

Pedestrians and cyclists would access the bicycle rooms via multiple locations, including the 

pedestrian plaza, the market-rate building lobby and residential floors, and the garage.  

 

TABLE 2: BICYCLE PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

Land Use Size Unit 

Short-Term Spaces Long-Term Spaces 

Parking Rate1 Required 
Parking 

Parking Rate1 
Required 
Parking 

Apartment 223 DU 
Min. 2 spaces or 1 

space/10 units, 
whichever is greater 

23 Min. 1.5 space/unit 335 

Commercial 8.9 KSF 
Min. 2 spaces or 1.5 

spaces/3,000 s.f, 
whichever is greater 

5 
Min. 1.0 

space/10,000 s.f. 
1 

Total Parking Required 28  336 

Total Parking Proposed 46  348 

Notes:  
1. Parking ratios based on Section 2.05.07.04 of the SPASP Form-Based Code. 

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2017. 

Pedestrian Access and On-Site Circulation 

Pedestrians would access the market rate and affordable housing buildings via the plaza entrances 

on San Pablo Avenue and Kearney Street. The plaza would provide access to the building lobbies, 

as well as the garage, elevators and staircases. Pedestrian access between the parking garage and 

the building would be provided via multiple lobby entrances and a staircase entrance located on 

Cutting Boulevard.  

The SPASP Form-Based Code (2.04.02) requires a minimum pedestrian zone of eight feet on all 

sidewalks along San Pablo Avenue, a six-foot zone along neighborhood streets with commercial 

uses and gateway streets, and a five-foot zone along neighborhood streets with residential uses. 

8A-43



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 7 of 9 

The project will provide eight feet of clear sidewalk space for pedestrians along San Pablo Avenue, 

six feet along Knott Avenue (neighborhood street) and Cutting Boulevard (gateway street), and ten 

feet along Kearney Street (neighborhood street), meeting City requirements.  

Both the San Pablo Avenue/Cutting Boulevard and the San Pablo Avenue/Knott Avenue 

intersections provide crosswalks and pedestrian signal heads at three of the four intersection 

approaches. The multi-modal improvements identified in the SPASP include providing crosswalks 

on the north approach of the San Pablo Avenue/Knott Avenue intersection and the south approach 

of the San Pablo Avenue/Cutting Boulevard intersection. As stated in Recommendation 1, the 

project applicant would contribute to these improvements by making a fair share contribution to 

these improvements, such as paying the TIF, currently under development. 

Transit Access 

The El Cerrito del Norte BART station is located just south of the project site. Project residents and 

visitors can access the BART station using the signal-protected crosswalk crossing Cutting 

Boulevard at San Pablo Avenue and the high-visibility crosswalk at the Ohlone Greenway, east of 

Kearney Street, which provides in-pavement flashing lights. 

AC Transit (as well as WestCAT, Soltrans, and FAST Transit) provides bus service to the project site 

with bus stops at the El Cerrito del Norte BART Station and on northbound and southbound San 

Pablo Avenue, south of the Cutting Boulevard intersection. The bus stops at the BART station 

provide bus shelters and benches, as well as BART station amenities such as bicycle parking. Both 

bus stops on San Pablo Avenue provide a bench but do not include a bus shelter.  

Parking and TDM Requirements 

The proposed project would include a two-level garage providing 150 parking spaces. Based on 

the project site plan, 145 spaces would be designated for the residential component of the project 

and five spaces would be designated for the commercial component of the project. This analysis 

assumes that the on-site parking would be limited to project residents and workers and that both 

residential visitors and commercial customers would use on-street parking.  

The SPASP Form-Based Code requirements for the TOHIMU zoning district apply to the project site. 

TOHIMU zoning (Section 2.05.07.04) limits parking to a maximum of 1.0 automobile parking spaces 

8A-44



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 8 of 9 

per dwelling unit, a maximum of 1.0 space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space, and a basic 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) plan.  

Table 3 summarizes the code-required maximum and proposed parking for the project. The code 

would limit parking to a maximum of 223 off-street residential parking spaces and a maximum of 

nine commercial spaces for the project. Based on a site plan dated April 26, 2017, the project would 

provide 150 residential parking spaces and five commercial spaces, meeting Code requirements. 

TABLE 3: REQUIRED MAXIMUM AND PROPOSED PARKING 

Land Use Size1 
Required Parking Supply Parking 

Supply 
Within 
Range? Minimum Maximum 

Apartments 223 DU 0 223 150 Yes 

Commercial 8.9 KSF 0 9 5 Yes 

Total  0 232 155 Yes 

1. Source: SPASP Form-Based Code Section 2.05.07.04 - TOHIMU Zone Off-Street Parking Requirements for 
Residential  = max 1.0 space per DU and for commercial = max 1.0 space per 1,000 sf  

2. DU = Dwelling Units 
Source: Fehr & Peers, 2017. 

The project is required to implement a basic TDM plan. The project proposes the following TDM 

strategies that would reduce automobile trips and parking demand generated by the project: 

 Long-term and short-term bicycle parking that exceeds Code requirements  

 Enhanced transit, pedestrian, and bicycle connectivity through streetscape  and site 
design 

 Unbundled parking for market-rate units 

 Bicycle repair station for residents 

 AC Transit passes or BART-equivalent Clipper Card value for project residents 

It is expected that the project parking garage would be limited to residents and employees, and 

that residential and commercial visitors would need to use on-street parking. Adjacent to the 

8A-45



Theresa Wallace 
June 26, 2017 
Page 9 of 9 

project site, on-street parking on Knott Avenue is limited to two hours and parking on Kearney 

Street is unrestricted.   

Recommendation 4: Consider implementing time-restricted parking (i.e., two-hour or 

four-hour limit) during weekday business hours on Kearney Street adjacent to the project 

site to promote parking turnover and availability for residential and commercial visitors of 

the project.  

Please contact us with questions or comments. 

8A-46



Fe
e

Du
e

N
ot

es

Si
ze

of
Pr

oj
ec

t
AM

Tr
ip

sI
n

AM
Tr

ip
s

O
ut

To
ta

lA
M

Tr
ip

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n
No

te
s

ST
M

P
Fe

e
Gr

os
s

25
7,

08
8

$
22

3
DU

18
41

59
ST

M
P

Fe
e

Re
du

ct
io

n
fo

rL
ow

er
Tr

ip
Ge

ne
ra

tio
n

(8
7,

41
0)

$
34

%
lo

w
er

tr
ip

ge
ne

ra
tio

n
th

an
in

th
e

20
05

ST
M

P
Ne

xu
s.

24
%

lo
w

er
th

an
20

19
Ne

xu
s .

8.
9

KS
F

5
3

8
ST

M
P

Fe
e

Ne
t

16
9,

67
8

$
23

44
67

25
43

68
2

1
1

8%
2%

1%

Si
ze

of
Pr

oj
ec

t
AM

Tr
ip

sI
n

AM
Tr

ip
s

O
ut

To
ta

lA
M

Tr
ip

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n
No

te
s

22
3

18
41

59
8.

9
KS

F
5

3
8

23
44

67
22

3
98

.2
8

Th
e

re
po

rt
ut

ili
ze

d
an

av
er

ag
e

a.
m

.t
rip

ra
te

of
0.

63
tr

ip
sp

er
dw

el
lin

g
un

it.
(2

00
5

up
da

te
)

8.
9

2.
67

0.
60

tr
ip

sp
er

em
pl

oy
ee

(2
00

5
up

da
te

).
2

em
pl

oy
ee

sp
er

1,
00

0s
fr

et
ai

l(
20

19
Up

da
te

of
th

e
ST

M
P

Im
pa

ct
Fe

e)
10

0.
95 34

34
%

Si
ze

of
Pr

oj
ec

t
AM

Tr
ip

sI
n

AM
Tr

ip
s

O
ut

To
ta

lA
M

Tr
ip

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n
No

te
s

22
3

18
41

59
8.

9
KS

F
5

3
8

23
44

67
22

3
80

.2
8

0.
36

tr
ip

sp
er

m
ul

ti
fa

m
ily

un
it

(2
01

9
Up

da
te

of
th

e
ST

M
P

Im
pa

ct
Fe

e)
8.

9
8.

36
6

0.
94

tr
ip

sp
er

1,
00

0
sf

re
ta

il
sp

ac
e

(2
01

9
Up

da
te

of
th

e
ST

M
P

Im
pa

ct
Fe

e)
88

.6
46 22

24
%

Ex
hi

bi
tF

M
ay

fa
ir

Tr
ip

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n
&

ST
M

P
Fe

e
Re

du
ct

io
n

Su
m

m
ar

y

%
De

cr
ea

se

De
lta

%
De

cr
ea

se

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tC

om
m

er
cia

l
M

ay
fa

ir
Pr

oj
ec

tT
ot

al

20
05

ST
M

P
Up

da
te

As
su

m
pt

io
n

Re
ta

il

De
lta

%
De

cr
ea

se

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tR

es
id

en
tia

l

20
19

Ne
xu

sS
tu

dy
Re

sid
en

tia
l

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tC

om
m

er
cia

l

20
19

Ne
xu

sS
tu

dy
Co

m
er

cia
l

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tT

ot
al

20
19

Ne
xu

sS
tu

dy
To

ta
l

Pr
oj

ec
t/

Re
po

rt

M
ay

fa
ir

vs
.S

PA
SP

EI
R

M
ay

fa
ir

vs
.2

00
5

ST
M

P
Ne

xu
sU

pd
at

e

M
ay

fa
ir

vs
.2

01
9

ST
M

P
Ne

xu
sU

pd
at

e

20
05

ST
M

P
Up

da
te

As
su

m
pt

io
n

Re
sid

en
tia

l

20
05

ST
M

P
Up

da
te

As
su

m
pt

io
n

To
ta

l

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tR

es
id

en
tia

l
M

ay
fa

ir
Pr

oj
ec

tC
om

m
er

cia
l

Pr
oj

ec
t/

Re
po

rt

Pr
oj

ec
t/

Re
po

rt

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tR

es
id

en
tia

l

M
ay

fa
ir

Pr
oj

ec
tT

ot
al

SP
AS

P
As

su
m

pt
io

n
De

lta

8A-47





  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: April 23, 2021 

FR: Joanna Pallock, Program Manager 
 

RE: West County Travel Training Program in FY22.    

  

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve an allocation of $48,000 in Measure J 28b funds to continue the West County 
Travel Training Program for the duration of FY22.   
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
In 2018, the WCCTAC Board approved the use of $100,000 in Measure J 28b funds to initiate 
a Travel Training Program in West Contra Costa based on recommendations from the West 
County Accessible Transportation Study.  The program began in March 2019 and involved 
outreach to seniors and less abled residents to train them on how to use various modes of 
travel including transit, Uber/Lyft services, and paratransit.  
 
The program was suspended in the Spring of 2020 with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the part-time Program Coordinator, Janet Bilbas, was placed on furlough.  Staff has 
heard anecdotally that there is a growing interest in restarting this program as more people 
become vaccinated and the demand for taking local trips re-emerges. At the February 
WCCTAC Board meeting, some Directors suggested that staff consider restarting the 
program in the summer.      
 
Staff is proposing that the Travel Training Program restart on July 1 at the beginning of the 
new fiscal year.  Staff is aware that the COVID-19 pandemic is far from over, that capacity 
limits on transit remain, and that various restrictions (such as mask mandates, or limits on 
certain indoor gatherings) might continue for some time.  Depending upon conditions, a 
reactivated program could begin gradually by making some use of online technology at the 
beginning or planning physical events and activities for a later time.  
 
Additional funding 
Of the $100,000 in Measure J 28b funds initially allocated by the Board, there is a balance of 
$36,000 remaining.  Without an additional allocation, the program will likely run out of 
funding before the mid-point of the fiscal year.  As such, staff recommends an additional 
allocation of $48,000 in Measure 28b funds to ensure program continuity and success for the 
duration of the upcoming fiscal year.   
 

9-1



 

Status of Measure J 28b funds 
Measure J 28b is a flexible category that can be used for any Measure J-related purpose as 
recommended by the WCCTAC Board.  As of June 30, WCCTAC will have $510,000 available.  
WCCTAC has a pending commitment of $85,000 as a local match for a Richmond Parkway 
Study grant.  If WCCTAC is awarded this grant, it will still have $425,000 available.  Funds in 
this Measure J category grow by approximately $80,000 per quarter.  
 
Proposed Use of Funds 
The table below provides some additional detail on staff’s funding recommendation.  
 

Program Elements Projected 
Annual Cost 

Comment 

Staffing  
 

$64,000 - Program Coordinator 
- Program Manager  
- Optional Intern 

Supplies $2,500 Printed materials, lanyards, vests, mailings, 
etc. 

Transit Subsidies $2,500 $5 preloaded to Senior and Disabled Clipper 
cards 

Option - contract with 
Elder Tech for technology 
training 

$15,000 Details would be brought back to the Board 
for consideration before implementation 

Subtotal  
 

$84,000  

Existing 28b funds already 
allocated 

-$36,000  

Total 28b Funding Need 
for FY22 

$48,000  

 
During the first year, there were many lessons learned. The Center for Independent Living 
(CIL) become a strong referral resource for one-on-one training of clients with more mobility 
challenges. Staff gathered a dedicated group of volunteers that enabled larger group trips.  
Staff also established strong partnerships with transit operators and senior center and senior 
housing staff.  All these relationships will continue to be essential.   
 
Staff proposes going beyond previous efforts in the upcoming year by providing additional 
support in areas such as technology assistance for booking trips, particularly those involving 
TNCs like Uber and Lyft.  The El Cerrito-based non-profit, ElderTech, is a specialized resource 
that could help staff meet the technology training needs of our senior and disabled 
population.  Adding their resources and expertise would allow staff to host more workshops, 
particularly those that involve using travel technology to expand information access and 
mobility options. 
 
 

9-2



 

Looking Ahead 
If the Board approves the recommendation, staff suggests that it return in the fall to provide 
a status report.  Staff would also return in the Spring of 2022 and provide the Board with 
options for FY2023.   
 
It is possible that West County’s Travel Training Program could eventually be folded into a 
larger, countywide travel training effort.  The recently approved, countywide Accessible 
Transportation Study (ATS), jointly managed by CCTA and the County, considered a variety of 
initiatives to improve the coordination of senior and disabled transportation services in 
Contra Costa County.  Staff from both the County and CCTA have been monitoring West 
County’s Travel Training Program and considering a countywide version. In this way, the 
program has not only benefitted West County residents, but also served as a useful pilot for 
peer agencies.   
 

9-3





 

 
 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contra Costa 

County 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 
 

 
 
April 8, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Tim Haile, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100   
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 

 
RE:  March 2021 WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary  

 
Dear Tim: 

 
The WCCTAC Board, at its meeting on March 26, 2021, took the following actions that 
may be of interest to CCTA: 
 

1. Approved circulation of staff letter to the LPMC regarding a proposed amendment 
to the Lamorinda Action Plan Amendment. 

2. Approved the release of the 2019 STMP Update Cycle 1 Call for Projects. $3.75 
million is available for the 20 projects on the 2019 STMP project list. 
 

Please let me know if you have any follow-up questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

       
 
 

John Nemeth 
Executive Director 

cc:  Tarienne Grover, CCTA; John Cunningham, TRANSPAC; Jamar Stamps, TRANSPLAN; Lisa  
       Bobadilla, SWAT; Matt Todd, CCTA 

13a-1





 
 

 

 

ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications. 
 

ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission 
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA) 
ATP: Active Transportation Program 
AV: Autonomous Vehicle 
BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission  
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation  
CBTP: Community Based Transportation Plan 
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 
CIL: Center for Independent Living 
CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies 
CMAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund) 
CMP: Congestion Management Program 
CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan 
CTC: California Transportation Commission 
CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List 
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report 
EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
EIS: Environmental Impact Statement 
EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals) 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
FY: Fiscal Year 
HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane 
ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility 
ITC or RITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center 
ITS: Intelligent Transportations System 
LOS: Level of Service (traffic) 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective 

13b-1



NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 
O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
OBAG: One Bay Area Grant 
PAC: Policy Advisory Committee 
PASS: Program for Arterial System Synchronization 
PBTF: Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities 
PC: Planning Committee (CCTA) 
PCC: Paratransit Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
PDA: Priority Development Areas 
PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans) 
RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG) 
RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center 
RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 
RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee 
SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy 
SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
STA: State Transit Assistance 
STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program 
STMP: Subregional Transportation Mitigation Plan 
SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County 
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 
TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
TDA: Transit Development Act funds 
TDM: Transportation Demand Management 
TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan 
TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities 
TOD: Transit Oriented Development 
TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County 
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County 
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses) 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
WETA: Water Emergency Transportation Authority 

13b-2


	2021-04-23 Board Staff Rpt STMP Fee Adjustment-w attachment.pdf
	FY 21-22 STMP FINAL qtrly transmittal form-approved 2020-06-11.pdf
	6-30-2020 version

	2021-04 Board rpt on FY21- 22 STMP fee adjustment.pdf
	REQUESTED ACTION
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION


	2021-04-23 Board Staff Rpt final-Developer STMP Fee Appeal .pdf
	REQUESTED ACTION
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENTS:

	2021-04-23 Board Staff Rpt final-Developer STMP Fee Appeal .pdf
	REQUESTED ACTION
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENTS:




